
815 North Orlando Smith Road 
Oglesby, IL  61348-9692 

Board Meeting 
A G E N D A 

Thursday, March 14, 2024 
Board Room 

5:30 p.m. 

NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding 
 the agenda, please call the President’s office, 224-0402. 



Tentative Board Committee Meetings 
Audit Finance Committee: January, April, June, and November 
Planning Committee: February and October 
Facilities Committee: May and August 
Closed Session Meeting Minutes Committee: June and December 

Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities 
for students and our community by providing access to affordable, 

high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

BOARD AGENDA ITEMS 

January 

February 
Authorize Budget Preparation 
Reduction in Force 
Tuition and Fee Review 
Three-year Financial Forecast 
Tenure Recommendations 
ICCTA Award Nominations 

(Alumnus, Student Trustee, Ethical) 

March 
Reappointment of Non-tenured Faculty 
President’s Evaluation 
ICCTA Award Nominations 

(FT/PT Faculty, Student Essay, 
Business/Industry) 

April 
Board of Trustees Election (odd years) 
Organization of Board (odd years) 

May 
Budget Adjustments 
President’s Contract Review 
Vice Presidents’ Contract Renewals 

June 
RAMP Reports 
Authorization of Continued Payment for 
     Standard Operating Expenses 
Semi-annual Review of Closed Session 

Minutes 
College Insurance 

July 
Tentative Budget 

a. Resolution Approving Tentative Budget
b. Authorization to Publish Notice of

Public Hearing
Athletic Insurance 

August 
Budget 

a. Public Hearing
b. Resolution to Adopt Budget

September 
Protection, Health, and Safety Projects 
Cash Farm Lease 
Approval of College Calendar (even years) 

October 
Authorize Preparation of Levy 
Audit Report 
IVCC Foundation Update 

November 
Adopt Tentative Tax Levy 
Student Fall/Employee Demographic Reports 

December 
Adopt Tax Levy 
Schedule of Regular Meeting Dates and Times 
Semi-annual Review of Closed Session Minutes 

MISSION STATEMENT 



ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees Meeting 
Thursday, March 14, 2024 – 5:30 p.m. – Board Room (C-307) 
 
The meeting can be accessed by the public at link https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/87920654409 
and meeting ID number 879 2065 4409. For dial-in, call 1 (312) 626-6799. 
 

A G E N D A 
1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Moment of Silence 

4. Roll Call 

5. Approval of Agenda 

6. Public Comment 

7. Consent Agenda Items - Anyone may remove an item from the consent item list by requesting 
the chair to do so. Items removed will be discussed and voted upon immediately following 
passage of the remaining consent items. 

7.1 Approval of Minutes – February 8, 2024 Audit Finance Committee Meeting and 
February 8, 2024 Board Meeting (Pages 1-8) 

7.2 Approval of Bills - $3,306,697.70 

7.2.1 Education Fund - $2,500,324.62 

7.2.2 Operations and Maintenance Fund - $117,398.53 

7.2.3 Operations and Maintenance Fund (Restricted) - $431,463.40 

7.2.4 Auxiliary Fund - $112,658.56 

7.2.5 Restricted Fund - $48,616.63 

7.2.6 Audit Fund - $1,950.00 

7.2.7 Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund – $93,151.58 

7.2.8 Grants, Loans, and Scholarships Fund - $1,134.38 

7.3 Treasurer’s Report (Pages 9-30) 

7.3.1 Financial Highlights (Pages 10-11) 

7.3.2 Balance Sheet (Pages 12-13) 

7.3.3 Summary of FY24 Budget by Fund (Pages 14-21) 

7.3.4 Budget to Actual by Budget Officers (Page 22) 

7.3.5 Statement of Cash Flows (Page 23) 

7.3.6 Investment Status Report (Pages 24-28) 

7.3.7 Disbursements - $5,000 or more (Pages 29-30) 

 

https://ivcc-edu.zoom.us/j/87920654409


IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
March 14, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 

7.4 Personnel – Stipends for Pay Periods Ending February 10, 2024 and February 24,  
 2024 and Part-Time Faculty and Staff Appointments February 2024 (Pages 31-34) 

7.5 Insurance Renewal (Page 35) 

7.6 Bid Results – Farm Lease (Page 36) 

8. President’s Report 

9. Student Trustee’s Report 

10. Committee Reports 

11. Tuition Adjustment (Page 37) 

12. Course Fees/Adjustments (Pages 38-41) 

13. Bid Request – Haas CNC MiniMill with Simulator (Page 42) 

14. Purchase Request – Furniture Upgrades for Marketing and Communications (Page 43) 

15. Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa Canal TIF (Pages 44-51) 

16. Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF (Pages 52-57) 

17. Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa I-80 North TIF (Pages 58-64) 

18. Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa US Route 6 TIF (Pages 65-70) 

19. Audit Services (Page 71) 

20. Board Policy 01.08 Board Meetings and Operations (Pages 72-77) 

21. Staff Appointment – Julia “Kathy” Hart, Dean of Institutional Effectiveness 
(Pages 78-79) 

22. Staff Appointment – Crystal Credi, Dean of Student Success (Pages 80-81) 

23. Items for Information (Pages 82-109) 

23.1 Board Policy 01.18 Appearance Before the Board (Page 82) 
23.2 Board Policy 01.19 Freedom of Information (Pages 83-85) 
23.3 Board Policy 01.20 Authority of Board Members (Page 86) 
23.4 Board Policy 01.23 Emergency Action (Page 87) 
23.5 Board Policy 02.12 Fees (Page 88) 
23.6 Board Policy 02.13 Grade Exclusion (Page 89) 
23.7 Board Policy 02.22 Academic Placement (Page 90) 
23.8 Board Procedure 01.24.01 Faculty and Adjunct Faculty Emeritus/Emertia 

(Pages 91-92) 
23.9 Board Procedure 01.24.02 Staff and Administrator Emeritus/Emertia 

(Pages 93-94) 
23.10 Staff Appointment – Lisa Witalka, Curriculum and Course Scheduler (Page 95) 



IVCC Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda 
March 14, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 

23.11 Staff Appointment – Sarah Trager, Dual Credit and Dual Enrollment Coordinator 
(Page 96) 

23.12 Staff Appointment – Juan Rodriguez, Technical Support Analyst (Page 97) 
23.13 ICCTA 2024 Business/Industry Partnership Award – SABIC (Page 98) 
23.14 ICCTA 2024 Gregg Chadwick Student Service Scholarship – Lynn Keyt 

(Page 99) 
23.15 ICCTA 2024 Lifelong Learning Award – Gregory William (Page 100) 
23.16 Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty for 2024/2025 (Page 101) 
23.17 Employee Separations Report (Page 102) 
23.18 CODA Letter of Initial Accreditation – Dental Hygiene (Pages 103-107) 
23.19 Thank You – Pam Byrne (Page 108) 
23.20 Thank You – Tonica Community Consolidated School (Page 109) 

24. Trustee Comment 

25. Closed Session – 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or 
dismissal of specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation;  
3) complaint lodged against an employee of the public body; 4) student disciplinary cases; and 
5) closed session minutes. 

26. Approval – Closed Session Minutes 

27. Other 

28. Adjournment 



_____     ______    _____ 
  JKM       EJS        AMS 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

Audit Finance Committee Meeting 
February 8, 2024 

The Audit/Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College 
District No. 513 met at 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, February 8, 2024 in the Board Room (C307) at 
Illinois Valley Community College. 

Committee Members Jay K. McCracken, Committee Chair 
Physically Present: Amy L. Boyles 

Maureen O. Rebholz 

Committee Members 
Virtually Present: 

Committee Members 
Absent: 

Board Members 
Physically Present: Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

Board Members 
Virtually Present: Rebecca Donna 

Others Physically Tracy Morris, President 
Present: Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs 

Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 

Others Virtually 
Present: 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 p.m. by Mr. McCracken. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

AUDIT 
The comprehensive annual financial report for fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 
was highlighted by Mr. Anthony Cervini from Sikich LLP. Mr. Cervini congratulated and 
commended IVCC for receipt of the Certificate of Achievement in Excellence in Financial 
Reporting from the Government Finance Officers Association. Mr. Cervini advised that the 
independent auditors report shows IVCC was issued a clean and unmodified opinion of the 
College’s financial statements for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 with no 
material weaknesses nor any material or non-compliances. The two minor instances of non-

1



Audit Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 
February 8, 2024 
Page 2  

_____     _____     _____ 
 JKM       EJS         AMS 

compliance identified during the 2021/2022 Financial Aid audit have been corrected and there are 
no repeat findings. Mr. McCracken thanked Mr. Cervini and expressed his appreciation for their 
services. Mr. McCracken congratulated Ms. Ross and her entire team on another stellar audit. 

FINANCIAL PLAN 2025-2027 
Ms. Ross highlighted the financial plan for fiscal years 2025-2027 and thanked President’s Council 
for helping lead the process as well as Justin Denton, Eric Johnson, and Nikki Van Nielen for 
providing information. Overall changes to operating revenues (education and operating and 
maintenance funds) are a 7.18% increase for FY25 from the FY24 budget but only a 5.35% 
increase from the projected actual. FY26 is a 3.05% increase from FY25 and FY27 is a 2.42% 
increase from FY26. Property Tax revenue assumptions include EAV increases of 4%, 3.5% and 
3% for the next tax years; State Revenue assumptions for FY2025-2027 includes a 2% increase to 
the base operating grant and CTE grant and flat funding for the equalization grant; and Tuition and 
Fees revenue assumptions include yearly modest incremental increases to align with the Consumer 
Price Index. FY25 increases reflect a $3.00 increase in tuition and a $2.00 increase in the 
technology fee. The cost to a full-time student, based on 15 credit hours, would be $75.00. This 
proposed increase has been presented to and supported by the Student Government Association. 
Overall changes to operating expenditures (education and operating and maintenance funds) are a 
25.58% increase from FY2025 from the FY2024. FY2026 is less than a one percent decrease from 
FY2025 and FY2027 is a 2.35% decrease from FY2026. The biggest contributing factor to the 
large increase in FY2025 and then a decrease in FY2026 and FY2027 is the capital line. It has 
become apparent through the Master Plan process and assessing needs through the IT Strategic 
Plan that it is necessary to refresh, update, and repair aging infrastructure. Mr. McCracken stated 
having the recommendations presented a month in advance is very helpful and gives them an 
opportunity to dive into them further. Mr. McCracken also appreciated the rationale for the 
increases. 

COURSE FEES/ADJUSTMENTS 
Dr. Morris stated 300 courses have fees that cover consumables. The recommendation is to change 
73 course fees which include 62 increases, 2 decreases, 3 new course fees, the removal of 1course 
fee, and 5 courses have been withdrawn. They will be submitted to the full Board of Trustees in 
March 2024 for vote. Mr. McCracken stated it was very well handled from start to finish. 

OTHER 
None 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m. 

______________________________ 
Jay K. McCracken 
Audit Finance Committee Chair 

______________________________ _________________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair  Angela M. Stevenson, Board Secretary 

2



______    ______ 
 EJS         AMS 

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
Board of Trustees 

Minutes of Regular Meeting 
February 8, 2024 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College District No. 513 convened a regular 
session at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, February 8, 2024 in the Board Room (C307) at Illinois Valley 
Community College. 

Members Physically Present: Everett J. Solon, Chair 
Jay K. McCracken, Vice Chair 
Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 
Amy L. Boyles 
Jane E. Goetz 
Maureen O. Rebholz 
Elizabeth G. Boyles, Student Trustee 

Members Virtually Present: Rebecca Donna 

Members Telephonically Present: 

Members Absent: 

Others Physically Present: Tracy Morris, President 
Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
Kathy Ross, Vice President for Business Services and Finance 
Mary Beth Herron, Director of Human Resources 
Walt Zukowski, Attorney 

Others Virtually Present: 

MOMENT OF SILENCE 
There was a moment of silence to remember Ricardo Huaracha of Leonore, father-in-law of Hector 
Arredondo of Allied Security; Joan Demonica of Huntley, mother of Dominick Demomica, our 
lead architect; and Judith Krafcky, retired nursing faculty member. 

Trustee Rebecca Donna was determined to be eligible to participate in tonight’s meeting 
electronically in accordance with the Open Meetings Act and Board Policy. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the agenda.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 

3



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 8, 2024 
Page 2 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the consent agenda, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

The following items were approved in the consent agenda: 

Approval of Minutes – January 18, 2024 Board Meeting. 

Approval of Bills - $2,109,669.80 
Education Fund - $1,332,427.89; Operations and Maintenance Fund - $225,011.48; Operations 
and Maintenance (Restricted Fund) - $432,001.16; Auxiliary Fund - $38,060.62; Restricted Fund 
- $20,194.21; and Liability, Protection, and Settlement Fund - $61,974.44.

Treasurer’s Report 

Personnel 
Approved stipends for pay periods ending January 13, 2024 and January 27, 2024 and Part-Time 
Faculty and Staff Appointments January 2024. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT 
Dr. Morris stated a Case IH planter donated to the ag program was delivered this week. Kudos to 
the IVCC’s Red Cross Club and Student Nurses Association for record breaking blood drives on 
the main campus with 49 total units collected and at the Ottawa Center 41 total units collected. 
Alumni Matthew Klein and faculty member Wes Black were part of the Ice Climbers of Starved 
Rock documentary which was presented in Ottawa on February 3rd.  

This fall, 196 students earned 251 degrees and certificates. For the Fall 2023 semester, 196 students 
were named to the Presidential Honors list and 508 students were named to the Academic Honors 
list. Eagles Peak had 27 visits in January that included 17 unduplicated households and 29 children. 
YMCA Little Eagles had 7 visits in January serving 5 unique students. 

Numerous events are planned throughout Black History Month. The Evolution of Hip Hop with 
Music Historian, DJ Lee, was held this week and was very well attended. All events are free to 
IVCC students and staff. Excellence Award nominations are now being accepted for the Stephen 
Charry Memorial Award for Teaching, Outstanding Part-time Faculty Award, and the Connie 
Skerston Memorial Award for Support Staff Distinguished Service. 

Kudos to Jennifer Etscheid for reimaging the student emails into something readable and visually 
appealing; Dental Hygiene for being granted the status of initial accreditation; Jennifer Scheri for 
being named a Community Cornerstone award winner by IVAC and Economic Development for 
exhibiting influence and inspiration and demonstrating unwavering dedication to both the college 
and the business industry; and faculty members Theresa Molln, Chrissy Boughton, Cathy 

4



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 8, 2024 
Page 3 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Lenkaitis, Samantha Whiteaker, and Emily Morgan for being recommended for tenure this 
evening.  

Events and happenings around campus include the core values operational definitions and 
institutional goals are out to the campus for input and voting, the DEI Committee is working on 
our equity plan, and the Academic Affairs are working on the Academic Strategic Plan. Academic 
Challenge was held on campus on February 2 with 158 students from eight schools competing. 
The 100th Celebration coffee blend is selling well with almost 50 bags sold in in just a few weeks. 
Fundraisers for Eagles Peak will include a SOUPer Bowl Celebration to collect donations of 
canned soup, stews, soup mixes, and individual microwave soups during the first half of February. 
The second half of February will be the 100 Years-100 Cans to collection donations of vegetables 
and stew. On February 24, the College will be supporting a team for the Coldest Night of the Year, 
a one mile walk in Ottawa to support PADS. Two student essay contests, the Paul Simon Essay 
Contest and the DEI Writing Contest have submission deadlines of February 23. 

The final enrollment update for Spring 2024 showed budgeted credit hours at 108%, 10th day to 
10th day at 102.96%, and day 16 (current) at 104.49%. Priority enrollment begins March 26, 
Summer enrollment begins on April 10, and Fall enrollment begins on April 11. 

The Decennial Plan will be updated with survey results and will be sent to the Board by the end of 
the month. The final Decennial Committee will be held in March.  

General updates included the creation of the Pasieka Family Scholarship in memory of their 
parents and the nominees for several ICCTA awards as noted in the Board book under Items for 
Information. The Facilities Master Plan noted the development of planning objectives and 
discussion of institutional priorities to inform the concept alternatives so DKA can build the first 
draft of the plan. The planning objectives were developed in the areas of campus image, campus 
life space, learning-centered environment, campus-wide wayfinding and organization, technology 
and connectivity, and framework for growth. 

STUDENT TRUSTEE’S REPORT 
Ms. Boyles reported the men’s basketball team is 11-12 overall, 3-1 in the conference, and have a 
game this evening at Carl Sandburg. The softball team will host their annual camp on February 17 
and 18. Registration forms are available through the IVCC website or by contacting Cory 
Tomasson. The Student Government Association updated their meetings to every other Thursday 
at 8:00 a.m. for the semester; an informational meeting with President’s Council was held to 
discuss the breakdown of tuition and fees and possible dates for a student picnic; and the tradition 
of a Soul Food Buffet will continue to celebrate Black History Month. Ms. Boyles noted SGA 
Secretary, Riker Fesperman, would like to inform the Board of the growing interest in IVCC’s 
study abroad opportunities. At least six students expressed interest this year and the office is 
looking at developing scholarship opportunities to support studying abroad. A new edition of the 
IV Leader is available and includes an article by Ms. Boyles. Find it around campus or on the IV 
Leader website.  

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
None  

5



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 8, 2024 
Page 4 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

TENURE RECOMMENDATION – THRESA MOLLN, WELDING INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve the tenure 
recommendation of Theresa Molln, Welding Instructor, as presented. Dean Lange shared that his 
favorite part about Theresa is that she is compassionate towards her students and the people around 
her. Her desire for people to succeed is overwhelming and she makes sure her students are prepared 
to learn. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried.  

TENURE RECOMMENDATION – CHRISSY BOUGHTON, NURSING INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the tenure of Chrissy 
Boughton, Nursing Instructor, as presented. Dean Seghi and Director of Nursing Sue Smith shared 
Chrissy’s knowledge, compassion, and continuous commitment to learning and student success 
symbolizes IVCC’s core values. Chrissy is a skilled and empathetic instructor and we are truly 
blessed to have her as part of our team here at IVCC. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

TENURE RECOMMENDATION – CATHY LENKAITIS, NURSING LABORATORY 
INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the tenure of Cathy Lenkaitis, 
Nursing Laboratory Instructor, as presented. Dean Seghi and Director of Nursing Sue Smith shared 
Cathy’s exemplary teaching performance has earned praise from both students and her supervisors. 
She goes beyond actively shaping the College’s future contributing the development of the new 
simulation lab and chairing the nursing skills lab manual committee. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

TENURE RECOMMENDATION – SAMANTHA WHITEAKER, NURSING 
INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the tenure of Samantha 
Whiteaker, Nursing Instructor, as presented. Dean Seghi and Director of Nursing Sue Smith shared 
Sam’s recommendations stems from her outstanding teaching marked by the students admiration 
for her passion and innovative methods. Sam is dedicated and skilled and embodies IVCC’s 
mission, vision, and core values. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

TENURE RECOMMENDATION – EMILY MORGAN, MATHEMATICS INSTRUCTOR 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the tenure of Emily 
Morgan, Mathematics Instructor, as presented. Dean Groleau shared when he considers a word 
that describes Emily, the word that comes to mind is caring. In addition to a very effective lecture, 

6



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 8, 2024 
Page 5 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

modeling technique, and guided practice technique, Emily uses the latest technology. She cares 
and her students quickly understand that they have an instructor that wants to see them succeed. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

RESOLUTION TO DESIGNATE THE FISCAL YEAR 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Mr. McCracken to adopt the resolution 
designating the fiscal year be from July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 and approve the budget calendar, 
as presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

BID REQUEST – CHILDCARE SIMULATION KIT 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Dr. Boyles recommends authorization to seek bids 
for an Early Childhood Care and Services Package simulation for the Early Childhood Education 
program at an estimated cost of $43,000. Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call 
Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, 
and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion carried. 
Ms. Stevenson noted this will be fully funded by the ECACE grant. 

PURCHASE REQUEST – COMMEMORATIVE ARTWORK 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Ms. Goetz to approve the purchase of the 
commemorative artwork from Westclox Studios in the amount of $35,000, as presented. 
Dr. Morris noted this will be paid using Foundation Community Technology Center designated 
funds. 

BOARD POLICY 02.07 AUDITING CLASSES 
It was moved by Ms. Stevenson and seconded by Dr. Boyles to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented.  
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

BOARD POLICY 02.15 HONORS DESIGNATION 
It was moved by Dr. Rebholz and seconded by Mr. McCracken to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

BOARD POLICY 02.18 PROGRAM APPROVAL 
It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Dr. Rebholz to approve the Board Policy, as 
presented. 

7



Minutes of IVCC Board Meeting 
February 8, 2024 
Page 6 

_____     _____ 
 EJS          AMS 

Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
Mr. Solon pointed out the information items on pages 72-94 of the Board book. 
Mr. McCracken stated the Audit/Finance Committee heard a phenomenal audit presentation today 
and commended Ms. Ross and her team for their great work and a very thorough presentation. 
Ms. Boyles thanked the Board for the nominating her for the ICCTA Student Trustee Award. 

TRUSTEE COMMENT 
Ms. Goetz noted the Fall 2023 Graduations were 24% higher for the number of student graduating 
and 32% higher for certificates and degree earned compared to Fall 2022. Dr. Rebholz stated the 
tenure presentations were personal and meaningful. 

CLOSED SESSION 
Mr. Solon requested a motion and a roll call vote at 6:18 p.m. to enter into a closed session to 
discuss: 1) the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 
specific employees of the public body; 2) pending or imminent litigation; and 3) closed session 
minutes.   
It was moved by Dr. Boyles and seconded by Ms. Goetz to enter into a closed session. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. The Board entered closed session at 6:20 p.m. 

It was moved by Ms. Goetz and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to return to the regular meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. The regular meeting resumed at 7:26 p.m. 

CLOSED SESSION MINUTES 
It was moved by Mr. McCracken and seconded by Ms. Stevenson to approve and retain the closed 
session minutes of the January 18, 2024 Board Meeting. 
Student Advisory Vote: “Aye” – Ms. Boyles.  Roll Call Vote: “Ayes” – Mr. McCracken, Dr. 
Rebholz, Dr. Boyles, Ms. Goetz, Dr. Donna, Ms. Stevenson, and Mr. Solon. “Nay” – none. Motion 
carried. 

OTHER 
None 

ADJOURNMENT 
Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 

____________________________ _____________________________ 
Everett J. Solon, Board Chair  Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary 

8



DISTRICT NO. 513 

TREASURER'S REPORT  

February 2024 

Kathy Ross 
V.P. for Business Services and Finance/Treasurer

Eric Johnson 
Controller 

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



Consent Agenda Item 7.5 

Insurance Renewals 

All lines of insurance coverage have been reviewed by the College’s insurance consultant, Bushue 
HR. They are recommending that the College negotiate a renewal all the following policies with 
current carriers. 

• Property
• General Liability
• Commercial Auto
• School Board Legal Liability
• Umbrella
• Workers’ Compensation
• Law Enforcement
• Media Liability
• Student Malpractice
• Foreign Liability
• Cyber Liability

It is the practice to bid the College insurance every three (3) years. It was last bid in 2021; However, 
due to the current climate in the insurance industry, Bushue HR has recommended all lines of 
insurance to be negotiated as a renewal for one more year.  They recommend to rebid in 2025 for 
coverage beginning July 1, 2025 (FY2026 coverage). Per Board Policy 04.10, insurance shall be 
purchased on a bid, quote, or negotiated basis every three years to provide adequate coverage 
with satisfactory and convenient service at the lowest cost. Given the current industry climate, it 
would not benefit the College to seek bids in 2024.  

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends the Board accept the recommendation of the insurance 
consultant and proceed with a negotiated renewal for FY2025 coverage. 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

35



Consent Agenda Item 7.6 
 

 
Bid Results – Cash Farm Lease and/or Custom Combining and Grain Hauling  
 
Bids for the cash lease of 116 +/- acres of farmland and/or Custom Combing and Grain 
Hauling 26 +/- acres were publicly opened on February 21, 2024. The bid announcement 
was published in the local newspapers and posted on the College’s website. The following 
is a summary of bids received. 
 

Bidder – Cash 
Farm Lease 

Price 
Per     

Acre 

Annual 
Lease   

Payment 

Combining 
Per Acre 

Hauling 
per 

bushel 

Avg. 
Annual 
Cost – 

Combining 
/Hauling 

Net 
Income 

Luke Holly 
Holly Farms  
Granville IL  

$326 $37, 817 $200 $0.35 $7,111 $30,705 

Jacob 
Wiesbrock 
Lostant  IL 

$260 $30,160 $70/$75 $0.25 $3,185 $26,975 

Chris Kolodziej  
LaSalle  IL $257 $29,812 $45 $0.18 $2,153 $27,659 

Cole Duffin 
Granville  IL $257 $29,812 N/A N/A N/A $29,812 

 
 
To reserve the rights and options of the College, the lease is written for the term of three 
(3) years. The top two bidders for both the annual lease and custom combining and hauling 
were interviewed by the Vice President for Business Services and Finance, Director of 
Auxiliary Services and Purchasing, Dean of Natural Science and Business, Director of 
Facilities and Agriculture Program Coordinator. Their references were also checked. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board approval to accept the bid for the Cash Farm 
Leasing in the amount of $326 per acre for years one, two and three and the fee for 
Custom Combining and Grain Hauling at $200 per acre and $0.35 per bushel for 
years one, two and three from Luke Holly, Granville, Illinois. 
 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 
 

36



Action Item 11 

Tuition Adjustment 

The administration recommends increasing tuition from $125.60 to $128.60 per credit 
hour, to be effective with the summer 2024 semester. The universal fee would increase by 
$2.00 for technology to $8.40 and student activities fees would remain at $3.00. The 
combined tuition and universal fee would be $140.00. The increase of $5.00 per credit hour 
is a 3.7 percent increase over the FY2024 combined tuition and universal fee of $135.00. 

IVCC’s peer colleges had an average tuition rate of $154.63 in FY24. In comparing FY24 
tuition and fees at similar sized Illinois community colleges, IVCC was lower than nine of 
the eleven colleges.  

Tuition has not been increased since FY2019, held at $125.60 for six years.  Costs have 
escalated post-pandemic and the College needs to keep pace with the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI). In addition, the technology fee will increase for a second year in a row to keep pace 
with the escalating costs of technological components. 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends Board approval to increase tuition and fees by $5.00, 
from $135.00 to $140.00 per credit hour beginning with the summer 2024 semester. 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

37



Action Item 12 

Course Fees/Adjustments 

Course fees are reviewed annually by Program Coordinators and Deans using the approved 
Course Fee Guidelines. A copy of the current course fee guidelines is attached along with a copy 
of the proposed fee changes for FY25. 

As per the Guidelines, courses taught in a dedicated instructional computer lab will have a 
technical support fee included in the final course fee. Based on expenditures to support 
computers in instructional labs, the FY25 lab component of the course fee has been calculated at 
$5.00 per credit hour, which is unchanged from FY20.   

All significant changes (more than a $10 increase) have a brief rationale listed after the proposed 
fee.    

There are currently 301 active courses with approved course fees. This recommendation is to 
change 73 course fees: 62 increases; 2 decreases; 3 new course fees, the removal of 1 course fee, 
and 5 courses have been withdrawn. 

Recommendation: 

The administration recommends changing 73 course fees: 62 increases, 2 decreases, 3 new 
course fees; the removal of 1 course fees, and 5 courses have been withdrawn. This will be 
submitted to the full Board of Trustees in March 2024 for vote. 

KPI 6: Resource Management 

38



C
ou

rs
e

Ti
tle

Credits

 2013-14 Fees 

 2014-15 Fees 

 2015-16 Fees 

 2016-17 Fees 

 2017-18 Fees 

 2018-19 Fees 

 2019-20 Fees 

 2020-21 Fees 

 2021-22 Fees 

 2022-23 Fees 

 2023-24 Fees 

 Proposed 
2024-25 Fees 

R
at

io
na

le
 fo

r I
nc

re
as

es
 o

ve
r $

10
AC

T 
12

80
Q

ui
ck

Bo
ok

s-
 P

ro
 A

cc
ou

nt
in

g
3.

0
36   

38   
40   

42   
44   

46
50

AG
R

 1
00

0
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 F
ie

ld
 C

ro
p 

Sc
ie

nc
e

4.
0

50   
60   

65
70

AG
R

 1
00

2
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
Ag

ric
ul

tu
ra

l M
ec

ha
ni

cs
3.

0
72   

75   
80   

90   
95

AG
R

 1
00

3
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
to

 A
ni

m
al

 S
ci

en
ce

4.
0

45   
50   

55   
60

65
AG

R
 1

20
6

Pr
ec

is
io

n 
Ag

ric
ul

tu
re

4.
0

50   
60   

65   
70

AG
R

 1
20

9
C

ro
p 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
3.

0
25   

30   
35   

45
50

AG
R

 1
21

7
So

il 
Fe

rti
lit

y 
an

d 
Fe

rti
liz

er
s

3.
0

25   
35   

40   
45   

50
55

AG
R

 1
21

8
C

ro
p 

Pe
st

 M
an

ag
em

en
t

3.
0

25   
35   

40   
45

50
AG

R
 1

22
1

Ad
va

nc
ed

 C
an

na
bi

s 
Pr

od
uc

tio
n

4.
0

50   
55

AG
R

 1
22

6
G

re
en

ho
us

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
3.

0
64   

64   
64   

70
75

AT
O

 1
21

0
Ba

si
c 

G
as

 E
ng

in
es

5.
0

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5

AT
O

 1
22

0
Ba

si
c 

Au
to

m
ot

iv
e 

El
ec

tri
ci

ty
3.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

14
0

C
os

t f
or

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 to

 m
ak

e 
ju

m
pe

r w
ire

s,
 

te
st

lig
ht

s 
ha

s 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

AT
O

 1
24

0
Po

w
er

 T
ra

ns
. A

nd
 M

an
ua

l T
ra

ns
.

3.
5

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5
AT

O
 1

25
0

En
gi

ne
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
3.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 1
26

0
St

ee
rin

g 
an

d 
Su

sp
en

si
on

 S
ys

te
m

s
4.

5
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 1
27

0
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t
5.

0
2   

2   
12   

20
30

AT
O

 2
20

0
Br

ak
e 

Sy
st

em
s

5.
0

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5
AT

O
 2

21
0

Ad
va

nc
ed

 E
ng

in
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 &

 D
riv

ea
bi

lit
y

5.
0

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5
AT

O
 2

22
0

Fu
el

 S
ys

te
m

s 
& 

Em
is

si
on

 C
on

tro
ls

4.
5

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5
AT

O
 2

23
0

Au
to

m
at

ic
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

s/
Tr

an
s-

Ax
ie

s
4.

5
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 2
24

0
Au

to
m

ot
iv

e 
Ac

ce
ss

or
ie

s
3.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 2
25

0
H

ea
tin

g 
an

d 
Ai

r C
on

di
tio

ni
ng

4.
5

85   
85   

95   
10

5
   

11
0

   
12

0
12

5
AT

O
 2

26
0

Ad
va

nc
ed

 D
riv

el
in

es
3.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 2
27

0
Au

to
m

ot
iv

e 
Se

rv
ic

e
4.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

AT
O

 2
28

0
C

om
pu

te
riz

ed
 E

ng
in

e 
C

on
tro

ls
3.

0
85   

85   
95   

10
5

   
11

0
   

12
0

12
5

BI
O

 1
00

1
G

en
er

al
 B

io
lo

gy
 I

4.
0

34   
36   

38   
40   

25
0

   
42   

47
50

BI
O

 1
00

2
G

en
er

al
 B

io
lo

gy
 II

4.
0

34   
36   

38   
40   

42   
44   

47
50

BI
O

 1
00

3
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
f B

io
lo

gy
4.

0
34   

36   
38   

40   
42   

44   
47

50
BI

O
 1

00
4

Bi
ol

og
ic

al
 D

iv
er

si
ty

4.
0

25   
30   

35   
42   

44   
47

50
BI

O
 1

00
9

M
ic

ro
bi

ol
og

y
4.

0
32   

34   
38   

40   
42   

45   
50

53
C

N
C

 1
20

0
Fu

nd
am

en
ta

ls
 o

f C
N

C
 O

pe
ra

tio
ns

3.
0

15
1

   
15

1
   

20
0

   
20

5
   

21
5

C
N

C
 1

20
2

C
N

C
 M

illi
ng

 M
ac

hi
ne

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
3.

0
15

1
   

15
1

   
20

0
   

20
5

   
21

5
C

N
C

 1
20

4
C

N
C

 T
ur

ni
ng

 C
en

te
r O

pe
ra

tio
ns

 I
3.

0
15

1
   

15
1

   
20

0
   

20
5

   
21

5
C

N
C

 1
20

6
C

N
C

 T
ur

ni
ng

 M
ac

hi
ne

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 II

3.
0

15
1

   
15

1
   

20
0

   
20

5
   

21
5

C
SC

 2
20

0
D

ig
ita

l F
or

en
si

cs
3.

0
60

12
5

60
D

ec
re

as
e 

- s
to

pp
ed

 u
si

ng
 a

 s
of

tw
ar

e
C

SC
 2

20
6

C
yS

A+
3.

0
60

0
co

ur
se

 w
ith

dr
aw

n
C

SN
 1

23
3

N
et

w
or

k 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n 

III
3.

0
55   

55   
55   

0
55

R
ei

ns
ta

te
 F

ee
D

FT
 1

20
3

M
ac

hi
ne

 B
lu

ep
rin

t R
ea

di
ng

3.
0

20   
20   

21   
0

21
R

ei
ns

ta
te

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
fe

e 
of

 $
21

 d
ol

la
rs

EC
E 

22
02

C
ur

ric
ul

um
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g

3.
0

15   
15   

25   
50   

60   
0

Fe
e 

no
 lo

ng
er

 n
ee

de
d.

  I
te

m
s 

ar
e 

co
ve

re
d 

by
 

de
pa

rtm
en

ta
l s

up
pl

y 
bu

dg
et

.

EC
E 

22
08

La
ng

ua
ge

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
3.

0
15   

15   
25   

35   
50

In
cr

ea
se

d 
ex

pe
ns

e 
of

 a
ss

ig
nm

en
t-r

el
at

ed
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

.

EL
E 

12
00

Ba
si

c 
In

du
st

ria
l E

le
ct

ric
ity

 I
4.

0
54   

54   
70   

10
0

St
ud

en
t l

ab
 k

its
 w

ill 
be

 p
ur

ch
as

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

EL
E 

12
01

Ba
si

c 
In

du
st

ria
l E

le
ct

ric
ity

 II
4.

0
54   

54   
70   

80

39



EL
E 

12
02

M
ot

or
s 

an
d 

C
on

tro
ls

 I
2.

5
54

   
  

54
   

  
62

   
  

70
   

  
80

EL
E 

12
03

M
ot

or
s 

an
d 

C
on

tro
ls

 II
2.

5
54

   
  

54
   

  
62

   
  

70
   

  
80

EL
E 

12
04

Pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
Lo

gi
c 

C
on

tro
lle

rs
 I

3.
0

54
   

  
54

   
  

65
   

  
70

   
  

80
EL

E 
12

05
Pr

og
ra

m
m

ab
le

 L
og

ic
 C

on
tro

lle
rs

 II
3.

0
54

   
  

54
   

  
65

   
  

70
   

  
80

EL
E 

12
06

El
ec

tri
ca

l W
iri

ng
2.

0
53

   
  

53
   

  
60

   
  

70
   

  
80

EL
T 

22
54

El
ec

tri
ca

l C
ap

st
on

e
1.

0
59

   
  

59
   

  
90

   
  

10
0

G
EG

 1
00

5
In

tro
du

ct
io

n 
To

 A
st

ro
no

m
y

4.
0

12
   

  
14

   
  

16
   

  
0

C
ou

rs
e 

w
ith

dr
aw

n
G

N
T 

12
01

In
du

st
ria

l P
ro

du
ct

io
n 

Te
ch

.
.5

-4
.0

va
rie

s
10

H
PE

 1
00

4
Fi

rs
t A

id
2.

0
40

   
  

42
   

  
43

   
  

45
   

  
50

   
  

55
   

  
60

   
  

65
   

  
68

75
IM

T 
12

00
Eq

ui
pm

en
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
3.

0
61

   
  

61
   

  
65

   
  

70
   

  
80

IM
T 

12
05

In
du

st
ria

l H
yd

ra
ul

ic
s

3.
0

76
   

  
76

   
  

65
   

  
70

   
  

80
IM

T 
12

06
In

du
st

ria
l P

ne
um

at
ic

s
2.

0
76

   
  

76
   

  
65

   
  

70
   

  
80

IM
T 

12
07

Pi
pe

fit
tin

g
2.

0
76

   
  

86
   

  
80

   
  

85
   

  
95

IM
T 

12
20

R
ig

gi
ng

 S
ys

te
m

s
3.

0
61

   
  

61
   

  
65

   
  

70
   

  
80

M
ET

 1
20

0
In

sp
ec

tio
n,

 M
ea

su
re

m
en

t &
 Q

ua
lit

y
3.

0
25

   
  

25
   

  
25

   
  

35
N

U
R

 1
10

0
Fo

un
da

tio
n 

of
 M

ed
ic

at
io

n 
Ad

m
in

is
tra

tio
n

2
50

N
ew

 C
ou

rs
e 

& 
fe

e 
fo

r s
up

pl
ie

s
N

U
R

 1
20

0
Fo

un
da

tio
ns

 o
f t

he
 N

ur
si

ng
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
8.

0
46

0
   

46
9

47
9

N
U

R
 1

20
5

Ph
ar

m
ac

ol
og

y 
I

1.
5

23
0

 
23

5
0

 C
ou

rs
e 

w
ith

dr
aw

n 
N

U
R

 1
20

6
Ph

ar
m

ac
ol

og
y 

II
1.

5
23

0
 

23
5

0
 C

ou
rs

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
n 

N
U

R
 1

21
0

M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 N
ur

si
ng

4.
0

85
   

  
85

   
  

23
0

   
26

0
24

0
D

ec
re

as
e 

- R
ed

uc
ed

 b
y 

$2
0

N
U

R
 1

21
1

H
ol

is
tic

 N
ur

si
ng

 I
5.

0
10

5
   

10
5

   
23

0
   

23
9

24
9

N
U

R
 1

22
1

H
ol

is
tic

 M
ed

/S
ur

g 
N

ur
si

ng
 fo

r P
ra

c.
 N

ur
se

5.
0

80
   

  
80

   
  

80
   

  
85

95

N
U

R
 2

20
0

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 Is

su
es

 in
 N

ur
si

ng
2.

0
42

   
  

42
   

  
47

   
  

23
0

   
30

0
C

om
bi

ne
d 

22
00

 / 
22

10
 - 

in
cr

ea
se

 la
b 

fe
es

 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y 
N

U
R

 2
20

1
H

ol
is

tic
 N

ur
si

ng
 II

5.
0

11
1

   
11

1
   

11
6

   
23

0
   

23
9

24
9

N
U

R
 2

20
2

M
at

er
na

l C
hi

ld
 N

ur
si

ng
 I

4.
0

91
   

  
91

   
  

95
   

  
23

0
   

23
9

24
9

N
U

R
 2

21
0

Is
su

es
 in

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l N
ur

si
ng

2.
0

18
2

   
18

2
   

18
7

   
23

0
   

0
C

ou
rs

e 
w

ith
dr

aw
n

N
U

R
 2

21
1

H
ol

is
tic

 N
ur

si
ng

 II
I

5.
0

10
1

   
10

1
   

23
0

   
23

5
24

5
N

U
R

 2
21

2
H

ol
is

tic
 N

ur
si

ng
 IV

5.
0

91
   

  
91

   
  

23
0

   
23

5
24

5
N

U
R

 2
22

0
N

C
LE

X 
R

ev
ie

w
/C

ap
st

on
e

1.
0

10
N

ew
 C

ou
rs

e 
& 

Fe
e 

SL
R

 1
20

0
So

la
r P

ow
er

: D
es

ig
n 

& 
In

st
al

la
tio

n
3.

0
10

0
N

ew
 C

ou
rs

e 
& 

Fe
e 

to
 c

ov
er

 m
at

er
ia

ls

TD
T 

12
01

Tr
uc

k 
D

riv
in

g 
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 I

6.
0

22
8

   
23

7
   

23
7

   
24

7
   

30
0

35
0

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
fe

es
 h

av
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
dr

am
at

ic
al

ly.

40



Course Fee Guidelines 

Qualifying Expenses 
Course fees may be charged in order to cover costs of the following. 
 
Per course section 

1. Consumable supplies 
2. Printing (handouts of less than 10 pages) 
3. Program or course-specific software and licenses, other than those applications in use by the 

general student body, such as Microsoft Office Products 
4. Lab assistants for specific program courses  
5. Expert guest speakers 

Per credit hour 
6. Technical support of instructional computer labs 

Per student 
7. Special 3rd party or certification/licensure testing  
8. Extraordinary instructional costs, such as per hour pay for private music lessons. 
 

Expenses covered by grants or other external sources are not to be considered. 

Calculation of Fees 
(Expenses per course section) / (enrollments in all sections)   
+ (Per credit hour expenses) X credit hours 
+ (Per student expenses) 
Course Fee 
 

1. Estimate the dollar amount to be spent on identified qualifying expenses, per course section, through 
review of past expenditures and consideration of anticipated variances. 

2. Annualize irregular expenditures by dividing the total expense by the useful life of the supply, service, 
or license.   

3. Sum all expenses. 
4. Divide that amount by the number of students enrolled in all sections of the course (or those 

consuming the resource) for the previous year or the minimum number of students per section, 
whichever is larger.   

5. Add in technical support for classes taught in instructional computer labs. The fee is calculated by ITS 
annually as the cost of support per computer lab PC divided by the average annual credit hours 
generated in instructional labs.  The calculation does not include costs covered by student technology 
fees.  The technical support element must be multiplied by the number of credit hours in the course.  

6. Add special, per student fees, such as insurance, testing and criminal background checks at the actual 
anticipated rate per student. 

 
The resulting figure, rounded to the next dollar, is the course fee to be assessed.  The maximum increase in 
a course fee will not exceed 50% in a given year. 
 
Review and Adjustment of Fees 
Course fees should be reviewed annually by Program Coordinators and Deans. 

41



Action Item 13 
 
 
Bid Request – Haas CNC MiniMill with Simulator 
 
The College is seeking to purchase a Haas CNC Mill for the manufacturing program. The purchase 
will be to upgrade the capabilities of the CNC program as per the suggestions of the program 
advisory committee. The college purchased a Haas CNC ST-10 lathe a few years back, and this 
purchase will be to upgrade the milling side of the CNC program. It is important that the new mill 
utilize similar programming language to the newest CNC lathe. 

Having an updated lathe and mill will better align the educational process to the local industry 
practices. The college should consider a continued investment in the CNC manufacturing lab to 
provide access to training equipment for students at the current section capacities. 

The CNC Mill will be fully funded by the Perkins Grant at an estimated cost is $43,000. 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board authorization to seek bids for a Haas CNC Mill for 
Manufacturing at an estimated cost of $43,000. 
 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 
 
 

42



Action Item 14 
 
 
Purchase Request – Furniture Upgrades for Marketing and Communications 
 
The FY24 budget included $70,000 for furniture upgrades. The furniture in the new 
Marketing and Communications office areas in Building E is dated and falling apart. We 
will be purchasing the furniture from Henricksen to match the other new office furniture 
that we recently purchased in order to be consistent.  
 
This furniture is being purchased through the OMNIA Partners purchasing cooperative. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends Board approval to purchase furniture for the 
Marketing and Communications offices in Building E not to exceed $37,000. 
 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

43



 

 Action Item 15 

 
 
Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa Canal TIF (approval) 
 
The administration, upon meeting with the City of Ottawa, supports the City’s request for 
the 12-year Extension of the Ottawa Canal TIF District and with your approval, will submit 
a letter of support for securing the approval in the State Legislature. 

The City of Ottawa, Illinois, established its Canal Tax Increment Financing District 
pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (the “Act”, 65 ILCS 5/11-
74.4 et. seq.) on June 27, 2006. The City now seeks to extend the life of the TIF District 
for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current termination in tax year 2029. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Administration recommends Board approval of the intergovernmental 
agreement with the City of Ottawa related to the Canal TIF, as presented. This 
approval would authorize the administration to send letters of support to 
Representative Yednock and Senator Rezin. 
 
 
 
 
 

44



OTTAWA CANAL TIF DISTRICT
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

by and between

THE CITY OF OTTAWA, ILLINOIS
and

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 513
_____

This Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the City of Ottawa, an Illinois Municipal
Corporation, and Illinois Valley Community College District 513, an Illinois Community College
District, is entered into pursuant to the 1970 Illinois Constitution and Illinois Revised Statutes.

In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The City of Ottawa (“City”) is an Illinois Municipal Corporation organized under the
Constitution and Statutes of the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Valley Community College District 513 (“Community College District”) is
an Illinois Community College District organized under the Statutes of the State of
Illinois.

3. The 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, and the Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 5 Section 220/1 et seq. provide legal authority for
intergovernmental privileges and authority to be enjoyed jointly by counties and
municipalities as well as other public bodies politic.

4. The Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (“TIF Act”), Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 65 Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. authorizes a municipality to
enter into all contracts necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance
of its redevelopment plan and project.

5. On June 27, 2006, the City approved a Redevelopment Plan and Projects, designated
a Redevelopment Project Area and adopted Tax Increment Financing pursuant to the
TIF Act for the Ottawa Canal TIF District (“TIF District”) which is an area located in
the Community College District and which impacts the growth of the Community
College District’s tax base.

6. On February 15, 2011, the City approved an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Community College District for the Ottawa Canal TIF District to reimburse the School
District for capital costs.

7. Pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(et. seq.) of the TIF Act, the City is seeking an extension
of the term of the TIF District from twenty-three (23) years to thirty-five (35) years.

8. This Intergovernmental Agreement is contingent in its entirety upon the Legislature’s
passage and the Governor’s approval of a Bill to extend the life of the Ottawa Canal

45



TIF District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current scheduled termination
in tax year 2029 payable 2030, and further, subsequent approval of an Ordinance by the
City adopting the extension.

9. The City has determined that it wishes to reduce some of the negative impact on the
real estate tax base of the Community College District caused by the creation and
extension of the TIF District.

10. The City wishes to exercise its authority under Section 5/11-74.4-7 of the TIF Act to
declare, on an annual basis, a certain amount of the incremental property tax revenues
as surplus funds (as defined in the TIF Act), to be returned to the County Collector of
LaSalle County for distribution to all taxing districts as described in Section I(B)(1) below,
including the Community College, from the Special Tax Allocation Fund established for
the Ottawa Canal TIF District. Any surplus payments provided for hereunder are not
payments in lieu of taxes as defined in the TIF Act.

11. In consideration of the City’s pledge to reimburse the Community College District as
described herein, the Community College District agrees that it shall provide a written
letter and/or resolution of support that is acceptable to City and further take no action,
directly or indirectly,  to object to the City’s initiative to secure an extension of the term
of the Canal TIF District for an additional twelve year period.

12. The Parties declare that this Agreement is adopted pursuant to the 1970 Illinois
Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 and Chapter 65 Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the TIF
Act and other applicable statutes and will become effective on January 1, 2030. As of
January 1, 2030, the existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be
terminated without further action and this Agreement shall be in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

I. REIMBURSEMENT

A. TAX INCREMENT

The Parties agree that the LaSalle County Clerk will provide to the Parties the actual annual gross real
estate tax increment generated within the TIF District and within the boundaries of the Community
College District and report such increment to the Parties. 

B. REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATION

1. Surplus Funds:

a. In exchange for the Community College District’s support, the City agrees that
commencing with tax year 2030 payable 2031, the City will declare as “Surplus Funds”
and set aside annually for the life of the TIF extension fifty percent (50%) of the gross
real estate tax increment deposited into the Ottawa Canal TIF District Industrial Special
Tax Allocation Fund for all parcels within the TIF District that are currently developed
with a fully completed and assessed building value or fully completed and assessed
parking lot value  as of 1/1/2024 (the “Developed Parcels”). The Community College

46



District shall then receive from the LaSalle County Collector, pursuant to Section 11-
74.4-7 of the TIF Act, its pro-rata share of the total amount of declared “surplus funds”
as part of the annual distribution to the respective taxing districts in the same manner
and proportion as the most recent distribution by the LaSalle County Collector to the
affected districts of real property taxes from real property in the TIF District
Redevelopment Project Area. The Community College District shall use such funds
received under paragraph 1 for any purposes as allowed by law.

b. Any parcels that are vacant as of 1/1/2024 shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration
(the “Vacant Parcels”).  For all purposes of this Agreement, the term “vacant” shall
mean any parcel that does not have a fully assessed  building or parking lot constructed
thereon as of 1/1/2024.

c. The Parties agree that all new annual real estate tax increment that is generated due to
increased assessments resulting from new construction, expansions, rehabilitation/
renovation projects (“new development”), pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement
approved by the City after 1/1/2024, shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration.

d. The parcels described in (b) and ( c)  above are defined as “Exempt Parcels”.

2. Payment to Community College District for Reimbursement of Capital Costs:

a. Commencing in tax year 2030 payable 2031 and each year thereafter, the City agrees to
annually reimburse to the Community College District three percent (3%) of the new
real estate tax increment generated by the Exempt Parcels, excluding the Downtown
Waterfront parcels (see Exhibit A) and Exempt Parcels that are subject to the
Development Agreement between the City and Heritage Harbor Ottawa Resort
Development, LLC dated April 3, 2007. The School District shall use this reimbursed
sum for the expenditures of capital costs as authorized by law.

b. Commencing in tax year 2030 payable 2031 and each year thereafter, the City agrees to
annually reimburse to the Community College District one and one-half percent
(1.5%) of the new real estate tax increment generated by the Exempt Parcels that are
subject to the Development Agreement between the City and Heritage Harbor Ottawa
Resort Development, LLC dated April 3, 2007.

c. The City will pay the sum described in Paragraphs (a) and (b) above to the Community
College District from the Special Tax Allocation Fund as an impact fee to be used for
capital costs, pursuant to current Section 4-3(q)(7) of the TIF Act, and the Community
College District shall provide the City with a list of such expenditures annually.

C. REIMBURSEMENT TIMING

The City shall pay the sum determined above to the Community College District in two installments,
such being made within sixty (60) days of the City’s receipt from the County of the second installment
and the final installment, respectively, of real estate tax increment generated as a preference and in the
same proportions as actually received by the City provided that the Community College District has
filed with the City a list of eligible project costs equal to or exceeding the calculated sum to be paid to
the Community College District to the extent funds received are for capital costs under Section I(B)(2).

47



II. GENERAL
Binding Effect:

This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and their respective successors--including
successors in office. 

Governing Law:

This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Illinois.

Term:

This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2030. As of January 1, 2030, the existing
Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be terminated without further action and this
Agreement shall be in full force and effect. The obligation of the Parties hereto shall continue for the
duration of the TIF District but only if the TIF District is legislatively extended. The TIF District shall
terminate upon completion of all redevelopment projects or thirty-five (35) years from the creation of
the TIF District, if legislatively extended, whichever occurs first.  Whether the TIF District exists for
the entire thirty-five (35) years or terminates earlier upon completion of all redevelopment projects, the
City will pay in the following year thereafter, the sums due to the Community College District for the
prior year or years. The City shall terminate the District upon completion of payment of costs paid for
any bond debt service, private redevelopment agreement obligations, and any public redevelopment and
other eligible project costs.

Amendments, Waivers, Modifications:

No amendment, waiver or modification of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be
binding or effective for any purpose unless expressed in writing and adopted by each of the Parties as
required by law.

Waiver of All Rights to Contest TIF District:

The Community College District by its execution and approval of this Agreement hereby waives
forever any and all right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify or contest in any manner the
establishment, administration or legislative extension of the Ottawa Canal TIF District including the
Redevelopment Project Area, Plan and Projects. Nothing contained herein is to be construed to give
the Community College District any right to participate in the administration of the TIF District or Plan
or Projects.

Enlargement of the TIF District:

The City agrees that it will notify the Community College District of any proposed enlargement
of the TIF District at least 60 days prior to the adoption of ordinances changing the District boundaries.

Amending the TIF District:

The City will not otherwise amend the TIF Plan except after providing written notice to the

48



Community College District and holding such public hearings as required by statute.

Real Estate Tax Increment Information:

(1) The Administrators of the TIF Plan and City agree to provide the Community College
District with information developed to establish the initial equalized assessed valuation of
the TIF District and the calculations for successive years’ computation of the real estate tax
increment for the TIF District as a whole and, if possible, for the Community College
District alone.

(2) The City agrees that its Administrators shall provide the Community College District with
a copy of the TIF Annual Report when it is presented to the City Council.  Such Report
shall set forth: (a) the balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“Fund”) at the beginning
of the year; (b) all amounts deposited in the Fund by source; © all expenditures from the
Fund by categories; and (d) the balance in the Fund at the end of the year by source.

Complete Agreement:

This Agreement expresses the complete and final understanding of the Parties with respect to
the subject matter.  Any existing agreements in conflict  herewith are hereby repealed.

Authority to Execute:

The undersigned represent that they have the authority of their respective governing authorities
to execute this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ______
day of __________________, 2024.

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY CITY OF OTTAWA, 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 513 an Illinois Municipal Corporation

By: __________________________ By: __________________________
Chairman Mayor

Attest: ________________________ Attest: ________________________
Secretary City Clerk

H:\OTTAWA\TIF 6 (Canal)\TIF Extension\IGAs\IVCC\IVCC IGA_Canal TIF Extension 022824.wpd

49



EXHIBIT A

DOWNTOWN WATERFRONT PARCELS

50



51



 

 Action Item 16 

 
 
Proposed Extension of City of Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF (approval) 
 
The administration, upon meeting with the City of Ottawa, supports the City’s request for 
the 12-year Extension of the Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF District and with your approval, 
will submit a letter of support for securing the approval in the State Legislature. 

The City of Ottawa, Illinois, established its Dayton Industrial Tax Increment Financing 
District pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (the “Act”, 65 ILCS 
5/11-74.4 et. seq.) on August 29, 2006.  The City now seeks to extend the life of the TIF 
District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current termination in tax year 2029. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Administration recommends Board approval of the intergovernmental 
agreement with the City of Ottawa related to the Dayton Industrial TIF, as presented.   
This approval would authorize the administration to send letters of support to 
Representative Yednock and Senator Rezin. 
 
 
 
 
 

52



OTTAWA DAYTON INDUSTRIAL TIF DISTRICT
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

by and between

THE CITY OF OTTAWA, ILLINOIS
and

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 513
_____

This Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the City of Ottawa, an Illinois Municipal
Corporation, and Illinois Valley Community College District 513, an Illinois Community College
District, is entered into pursuant to the 1970 Illinois Constitution and Illinois Revised Statutes.

In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The City of Ottawa (“City”) is an Illinois Municipal Corporation organized under the
Constitution and Statutes of the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Valley Community College District 513 (“Community College District”) is
an Illinois Community College District organized under the Statutes of the State of
Illinois.

3. The 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, and the Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 5 Section 220/1 et seq. provide legal authority for
intergovernmental privileges and authority to be enjoyed jointly by counties and
municipalities as well as other public bodies politic.

4. The Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (“TIF Act”), Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 65 Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. authorizes a municipality to
enter into all contracts necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance
of its redevelopment plan and project.

5. On August 29, 2006, the City approved a Redevelopment Plan and Projects, designated
a Redevelopment Project Area and adopted Tax Increment Financing pursuant to the
TIF Act for the Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF District (“TIF District”) which is an area
located in the Community College District and which impacts the growth of the
Community College District’s tax base.

6. On April 7, 2009, the City approved an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Community College District for the Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF District to reimburse
the School District for capital costs.

7. Pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(et. seq.) of the TIF Act, the City is seeking an extension
of the term of the TIF District from twenty-three (23) years to thirty-five (35) years.

8. This Intergovernmental Agreement is contingent in its entirety upon the Legislature’s
passage and the Governor’s approval of a Bill to extend the life of the Ottawa Dayton

53



Industrial TIF District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current scheduled
termination in tax year 2029 payable 2030, and further, subsequent approval of an
Ordinance by the City adopting the extension.

9. The City has determined that it wishes to reduce some of the negative impact on the
real estate tax base of the Community College District caused by the creation and
extension of the TIF District.

10. The City wishes to exercise its authority under Section 5/11-74.4-7 of the TIF Act to
declare, on an annual basis, a certain amount of the incremental property tax revenues
as surplus funds (as defined in the TIF Act), to be returned to the County Collector of
LaSalle County for distribution to all taxing districts as described in Section I(B)(1) below,
including the Community College, from the Special Tax Allocation Fund established for
the Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF District. Any surplus payments provided for
hereunder are not payments in lieu of taxes as defined in the TIF Act.

11. In consideration of the City’s pledge to reimburse the Community College District as
described herein, the Community College District agrees that it shall provide a written
letter and/or resolution of support that is acceptable to City and further take no action,
directly or indirectly,  to object to the City’s initiative to secure an extension of the term
of the Dayton Industrial TIF District for an additional twelve year period.

12. The Parties declare that this Agreement is adopted pursuant to the 1970 Illinois
Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 and Chapter 65 Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the TIF
Act and other applicable statutes and will become effective on January 1, 2030. As of
January 1, 2030, the existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be
terminated without further action and this Agreement shall be in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

I. REIMBURSEMENT

A. TAX INCREMENT

The Parties agree that the LaSalle County Clerk will provide to the Parties the actual annual gross real
estate tax increment generated within the TIF District and within the boundaries of the Community
College District and report such increment to the Parties. 

B. REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATION

1. Surplus Funds:

a. In exchange for the Community College District’s support, the City agrees that
commencing with tax year 2030 payable 2031, the City will declare as “Surplus Funds”
and set aside annually for the life of the TIF extension fifty percent (50%) of the gross
real estate tax increment deposited into the Ottawa Dayton Industrial Special Tax
Allocation Fund for all parcels within the TIF District that are currently developed with
a fully completed and assessed building value or fully completed and assessed parking
lot value  as of 1/1/2024 (the “Developed Parcels”). The Community College District

54



shall then receive from the LaSalle County Collector, pursuant to Section 11-74.4-7 of
the TIF Act, its pro-rata share of the total amount of declared “surplus funds” as part
of the annual distribution to the respective taxing districts in the same manner and
proportion as the most recent distribution by the LaSalle County Collector to the
affected districts of real property taxes from real property in the TIF District
Redevelopment Project Area. The Community College District shall use such funds
received under paragraph 1 for any purposes as allowed by law.

b. Any parcels that are vacant as of 1/1/2024 shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration
(the “Vacant Parcels”).  For all purposes of this Agreement, the term “vacant” shall
mean any parcel that does not have a fully assessed building or parking lot constructed
thereon as of 1/1/2024.

c. The Parties agree that all new annual real estate tax increment that is generated due to
increased assessments resulting from new construction, expansions, rehabilitation/
renovation projects (“new development”), pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement
approved by the City after 1/1/2024, shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration.

d. The parcels described in (b) and (c) above are defined as “Exempt Parcels”.

2. Payment to Community College District for Reimbursement of Capital Costs:

a. Commencing in tax year 2030 payable 2031 and each year thereafter, the City agrees to
annually reimburse to the Community College District three percent (3%) of the new
real estate tax increment generated by the Exempt Parcels. The School District shall use
this reimbursed sum for the expenditures of capital costs as authorized by law.

b. The City will pay the sum described above to the Community College District from the
Special Tax Allocation Fund as an impact fee to be used for capital costs, pursuant to
current Section 4-3(q)(7) of the TIF Act, and the Community College District shall
provide the City with a list of such expenditures annually.

C. REIMBURSEMENT TIMING

The City shall pay the sum determined above to the Community College District in two installments,
such being made within sixty (60) days of the City’s receipt from the County of the second installment
and the final installment, respectively, of real estate tax increment generated as a preference and in the
same proportions as actually received by the City provided that the Community College District has
filed with the City a list of eligible project costs equal to or exceeding the calculated sum to be paid to
the Community College District to the extent funds received are for capital costs under Section I(B)(2).

II. GENERAL
Binding Effect:

This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and their respective successors--including
successors in office. 

55



Governing Law:

This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Illinois.

Term:

This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2030. As of January 1, 2030, the existing
Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be terminated without further action and this
Agreement shall be in full force and effect. The obligation of the Parties hereto shall continue for the
duration of the TIF District but only if the TIF District is legislatively extended. The TIF District shall
terminate upon completion of all redevelopment projects or thirty-five (35) years from the creation of
the TIF District, if legislatively extended, whichever occurs first.  Whether the TIF District exists for
the entire thirty-five (35) years or terminates earlier upon completion of all redevelopment projects, the
City will pay in the following year thereafter, the sums due to the Community College District for the
prior year or years. The City shall terminate the District upon completion of payment of costs paid for
any bond debt service, private redevelopment agreement obligations, and any public redevelopment and
other eligible project costs.

Amendments, Waivers, Modifications:

No amendment, waiver or modification of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be
binding or effective for any purpose unless expressed in writing and adopted by each of the Parties as
required by law.

Waiver of All Rights to Contest TIF District:

The Community College District by its execution and approval of this Agreement hereby waives
forever any and all right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify or contest in any manner the
establishment, administration or legislative extension of the Ottawa Dayton Industrial TIF District
including the Redevelopment Project Area, Plan and Projects. Nothing contained herein is to be
construed to give the Community College District any right to participate in the administration of the
TIF District or Plan or Projects.

Enlargement of the TIF District:

The City agrees that it will notify the Community College District of any proposed enlargement
of the TIF District at least 60 days prior to the adoption of ordinances changing the District boundaries.

Amending the TIF District:

The City will not otherwise amend the TIF Plan except after providing written notice to the
Community College District and holding such public hearings as required by statute.

Real Estate Tax Increment Information:

(1) The Administrators of the TIF Plan and City agree to provide the Community College
District with information developed to establish the initial equalized assessed valuation of
the TIF District and the calculations for successive years’ computation of the real estate tax

56



increment for the TIF District as a whole and, if possible, for the Community College
District alone. 

(2) The City agrees that its Administrators shall provide the Community College District with
a copy of the TIF Annual Report when it is presented to the City Council.  Such Report
shall set forth: (a) the balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“Fund”) at the beginning
of the year; (b) all amounts deposited in the Fund by source; © all expenditures from the
Fund by categories; and (d) the balance in the Fund at the end of the year by source.

Complete Agreement:

This Agreement expresses the complete and final understanding of the Parties with respect to
the subject matter.  Any existing agreements in conflict  herewith are hereby repealed.

Authority to Execute:

The undersigned represent that they have the authority of their respective governing authorities
to execute this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ______
day of __________________, 2024.

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY CITY OF OTTAWA, 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 513 an Illinois Municipal Corporation

By: __________________________ By: __________________________
Chairman Mayor

Attest: ________________________ Attest: ________________________
Secretary City Clerk

H:\OTTAWA\TIF 5 (Dayton Ind)\TIF Extension\IGAs\IVCC\IVCC IGA_Dayton Ind TIF Extension 022824.wpd

57



 

 Action Item 17 

 
 
Proposed Second Extension of City of Ottawa I-80 North TIF (approval) 
 
The administration, upon meeting with the City of Ottawa, supports the City’s request for 
the 12-year Second Extension of the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District and with your 
approval, will submit a letter of support for securing the approval in the State Legislature. 

The City of Ottawa, Illinois established its I-80 North Tax Increment Financing District 
pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (the “Act”, 65 ILCS 5/11-
74.4 et. seq.) on December 29, 1993. The TIF District was originally extended by the 
Illinois Legislature for an additional twelve (12) years, through tax year 2028 payable 2029, 
by Public Act 098-0889 which was signed by the Governor on August 15, 2014. This 
legislative extension will result in the final year of increment for tax year 2040 being 
received by the City through December 31, 2041. 

 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Administration recommends Board approval of the intergovernmental 
agreement with the City of Ottawa related to the I-80 North TIF, as presented. This 
approval would authorize the administration to send letters of support to 
Representative Yednock and Senator Rezin. 
 
 
 
 
 

58



OTTAWA I-80 NORTH TIF DISTRICT
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

by and between

THE CITY OF OTTAWA, ILLINOIS
and

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 513
_____

This Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the City of Ottawa, an Illinois Municipal
Corporation, and Illinois Valley Community College District 513, an Illinois Community College
District, is entered into pursuant to the 1970 Illinois Constitution and Illinois Revised Statutes.

In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The City of Ottawa (“City”) is an Illinois Municipal Corporation organized under the
Constitution and Statutes of the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Valley Community College District 513 (“Community College District”) is
an Illinois Community College District organized under the Statutes of the State of
Illinois.

3. The 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, and the Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 5 Section 220/1 et seq. provide legal authority for
intergovernmental privileges and authority to be enjoyed jointly by counties and
municipalities as well as other public bodies politic.

4. The Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (“TIF Act”), Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 65 Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. authorizes a municipality to
enter into all contracts necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance
of its redevelopment plan and project.

5. On December 29, 1993, the City approved a Redevelopment Plan and Projects,
designated a Redevelopment Project Area and adopted Tax Increment Financing
pursuant to the TIF Act for the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District (“TIF District”) which
is an area located in the Community College District and which impacts the growth of
the Community College District’s tax base.

6. On December 20, 1993, the City approved an Intergovernmental Agreement with the
Community College District for the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District to reimburse the
Community College District for capital costs.

7. On April 15, 2014, the Parties entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for the
legislative extension of the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District for an additional twelve (12)
years, through tax year 2028 payable 2029.

59



8. Pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(n)(J)(3) of the TIF Act, the City is seeking a second
extension of the term of the TIF District from thirty-five (35) years to forty-seven (47)
years.

9. This Intergovernmental Agreement is contingent in its entirety upon the Legislature’s
passage and the Governor’s approval of a Bill to extend the life of the Ottawa I-80
North TIF District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current scheduled
termination in tax year 2028 payable 2029 and further, subsequent approval of an
Ordinance by the City adopting the extension.

10. The City has determined that it wishes to reduce some of the negative impact on the
real estate tax base of the Community College District caused by the creation and
extension of the TIF District.

11. The City wishes to exercise its authority under Section 5/11-74.4-7 of the TIF Act to
declare, on an annual basis, a certain amount of the incremental property tax revenues
as surplus funds (as defined in the TIF Act), to be returned to the County Collector of
LaSalle County for distribution to all taxing districts as described in Section I(B)(1) below,
including the Community College, from the Special Tax Allocation Fund established for
the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District. Any surplus payments provided for hereunder are
not payments in lieu of taxes as defined in the TIF Act.

12. In consideration of the City’s pledge to reimburse the Community College District as
described herein, the Community College District agrees that it shall provide a written
letter and/or resolution of support that is acceptable to City and further take no action,
directly or indirectly,  to object to the City’s initiative to secure an extension of the term
of the I-80 North TIF district for an additional twelve year period.

13. The Parties declare that this Agreement is adopted pursuant to the 1970 Illinois
Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 and Chapter 65 Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the TIF
Act and other applicable statutes and will become effective on January 1, 2029. As of
January 1, 2029, the existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be
terminated without further action and this Agreement shall be in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

I. REIMBURSEMENT

A. TAX INCREMENT

The Parties agree that the LaSalle County Clerk will provide to the Parties the actual annual gross real
estate tax increment generated within the TIF District and within the boundaries of the Community
College District and report such increment to the Parties. 

B. REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATION

1. Surplus Funds:

a. In exchange for the Community College District’s support, the City agrees that

60



commencing with tax year 2029 payable 2030, the City will declare as “Surplus Funds”
and set aside annually for the life of the TIF extension one hundred percent (100%)
of the gross real estate tax increment deposited into the Ottawa I-80 North Special Tax
Allocation Fund for all parcels within the TIF District that are currently developed with
a fully completed and assessed building value or fully completed and assessed parking
lot value  as of 1/1/2024 (the “Developed Parcels”). The Community College District
shall then receive from the LaSalle County Collector, pursuant to Section 11-74.4-7 of
the TIF Act, its pro-rata share of the total amount of declared “surplus funds” as part
of the annual distribution to the respective taxing districts in the same manner and
proportion as the most recent distribution by the LaSalle County Collector to the
affected districts of real property taxes from real property in the TIF District
Redevelopment Project Area. The Community College District shall use such funds
received under paragraph 1 for any purposes as allowed by law.

b. Any parcels that are vacant as of 1/1/2024 shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration
(the “Vacant Parcels”).  For all purposes of this Agreement, the term “vacant” shall
mean any parcel that does not have a fully assessed building or parking lot constructed
thereon as of 1/1/24.

c. The Parties agree that all new annual real estate tax increment that is generated due to
increased assessments resulting from new construction, expansions, rehabilitation/
renovation projects (“new development”), pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement
approved by the City after 1/1/2024, shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration.

d. The parcels described in (b) and (c) above are defined as “Exempt Parcels”.

2. Payment to Community College District for Reimbursement of Capital Costs:

a. Commencing in tax year 2029 payable 2030 and each year thereafter, the City agrees to
annually reimburse to the Community College District as follows from the new real
estate tax increment generated by the Exempt Parcels. The Community College District
shall use this reimbursed sum for the expenditures of capital costs as authorized by law.

b. As a result of the information provided annually by the State Department of Education
and the LaSalle County Clerk, the parties will compute the actual real estate tax loss, if
any, realized by the Community College District. In the event that either or both of
these offices fail to provide the information requested, the parties will use their own best
efforts to obtain the necessary information.

An example of this computation follows:

1. The Community College District will provide
its operating tax rate: 0.35957 %

2. The County Clerk will certify the real estate tax equalized assessed valuation
increment within the TIF District over the base year and within the Community
College District’s boundaries for all Exempt Parcels:

$ 100,000

61



3. Item #1 times Item #2 = $   359.57

c. The City will pay the sum described above to the Community College District from the
Special Tax Allocation Fund as an impact fee to be used for capital costs, pursuant to
current Section 4-3(q)(7) of the TIF Act, and the Community College District shall
provide the City with a list of such expenditures annually.

C. REIMBURSEMENT TIMING

The City shall pay the sum determined above to the Community College District in two installments,
such being made within sixty (60) days of the City’s receipt from the County of the second installment
and the final installment, respectively, of real estate tax increment generated as a preference and in the
same proportions as actually received by the City provided that the Community College District has
filed with the City a list of eligible project costs equal to or exceeding the calculated sum to be paid to
the Community College District to the extent funds received are for capital costs under Section I(B)(2).

II. GENERAL
Binding Effect:

This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and their respective successors--including
successors in office. 

Governing Law:

This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Illinois.

Term:

This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2029. As of January 1, 2029, the existing
Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be terminated without further action and this
Agreement shall be in full force and effect. The obligation of the Parties hereto shall continue for the
duration of the TIF District but only if the TIF District is legislatively extended. The TIF District shall
terminate upon completion of all redevelopment projects or forty-seven (47) years from the creation
of the TIF District, if legislatively extended, whichever occurs first.  Whether the TIF District exists for
the entire forty-seven (47) years or terminates earlier upon completion of all redevelopment projects,
the City will pay in the following year thereafter, the sums due to the Community College District for
the prior year or years. The City shall terminate the District upon completion of payment of costs paid
for any bond debt service, private redevelopment agreement obligations, and any public redevelopment
and other eligible project costs.

Amendments, Waivers, Modifications:

No amendment, waiver or modification of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be
binding or effective for any purpose unless expressed in writing and adopted by each of the Parties as
required by law.

62



Waiver of All Rights to Contest TIF District:

The Community College District by its execution and approval of this Agreement hereby waives
forever any and all right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify or contest in any manner the
establishment, administration or legislative extension of the Ottawa I-80 North TIF District including
the Redevelopment Project Area, Plan and Projects. Nothing contained herein is to be construed to give
the Community College District any right to participate in the administration of the TIF District or Plan
or Projects.

Enlargement of the TIF District:

The City agrees that it will notify the Community College District of any proposed enlargement
of the TIF District at least 60 days prior to the adoption of ordinances changing the District boundaries.

Amending the TIF District:

The City will not otherwise amend the TIF Plan except after providing written notice to the
Community College District and holding such public hearings as required by statute.

Real Estate Tax Increment Information:

(1) The Administrators of the TIF Plan and City agree to provide the Community College
District with information developed to establish the initial equalized assessed valuation of
the TIF District and the calculations for successive years’ computation of the real estate tax
increment for the TIF District as a whole and, if possible, for the Community College
District alone.

(2) The City agrees that its Administrators shall provide the Community College District with
a copy of the TIF Annual Report when it is presented to the City Council.  Such Report
shall set forth: (a) the balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“Fund”) at the beginning
of the year; (b) all amounts deposited in the Fund by source; (c) all expenditures from the
Fund by categories; and (d) the balance in the Fund at the end of the year by source.

Complete Agreement:

This Agreement expresses the complete and final understanding of the Parties with respect to
the subject matter.  Any existing agreements in conflict  herewith are hereby repealed.

Authority to Execute:

The undersigned represent that they have the authority of their respective governing authorities
to execute this Agreement.

63



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ______
day of __________________, 2024.

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY CITY OF OTTAWA, 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 513 an Illinois Municipal Corporation

By: __________________________ By: __________________________
Chairman Mayor

Attest: ________________________ Attest: ________________________
Secretary City Clerk

H:\OTTAWA\TIF 1 (I-80 North)\TIF Extension\Agreements\IGAs\IVCC\IVCC IGA_I-80 N TIF 2nd Extension 022824.wpd

64



 

 Action Item 18 

 
 
Proposed Second Extension of City of Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF (approval) 
 
The administration, upon meeting with the City of Ottawa, supports the City’s request for 
the 12-year Second Extension of the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF District and with your 
approval, will submit a letter of support for securing the approval in the State Legislature. 

The City of Ottawa, Illinois, established its U.S. Route 6 East Tax Increment Financing 
District pursuant to the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (the “Act”, 65 ILCS 
5/11-74.4 et. seq.) on September 20, 1994. The TIF District was originally extended by the 
Illinois Legislature for an additional twelve (12) years, through tax year 2029 payable 2030, 
by Public Act 099-0394 which was signed by the Governor on August 18, 2015. The City 
now seeks to extend the life of the TIF District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond 
its current termination in tax year 2029. This legislative extension will result in the final 
year of increment for tax year 2041 being received by the City through December 31, 2042. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The Administration recommends Board approval of the intergovernmental 
agreement with the City of Ottawa related to the U.S. Route 6 East TIF, as presented.   
This approval would authorize the administration to send letters of support to 
Representative Yednock and Senator Rezin. 
 
 
 
 
 

65



OTTAWA U.S. ROUTE 6 EAST TIF DISTRICT
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT

by and between

THE CITY OF OTTAWA, ILLINOIS
and

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 513
_____

This Intergovernmental Agreement by and between the City of Ottawa, an Illinois Municipal
Corporation, and Illinois Valley Community College District 513, an Illinois Community College
District, is entered into pursuant to the 1970 Illinois Constitution and Illinois Revised Statutes.

In consideration of their mutual promises, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

1. The City of Ottawa (“City”) is an Illinois Municipal Corporation organized under the
Constitution and Statutes of the State of Illinois.

2. The Illinois Valley Community College District 513 (“Community College District”) is
an Illinois Community College District organized under the Statutes of the State of
Illinois.

3. The 1970 Illinois Constitution, Article VII, Section 10, and the Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 5 Section 220/1 et seq. provide legal authority for
intergovernmental privileges and authority to be enjoyed jointly by counties and
municipalities as well as other public bodies politic.

4. The Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (“TIF Act”), Illinois Compiled
Statutes, as amended, Ch. 65 Section 5/11-74.4-1 et seq. authorizes a municipality to
enter into all contracts necessary or incidental to the implementation and furtherance
of its redevelopment plan and project.

5. On September 20, 1994, the City approved a Redevelopment Plan and Projects,
designated a Redevelopment Project Area and adopted Tax Increment Financing
pursuant to the TIF Act for the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF District (“TIF District”)
which is an area located in the Community College District and which impacts the
growth of the Community College District’s tax base.

6. On April 21, 2015, the Parties entered into an Intergovernmental Agreement for the
legislative extension of the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF District for an additional
twelve (12) years, through tax year 2029 payable 2030.

7. Pursuant to Section 11-74.4-3(et. seq.) of the TIF Act, the City is seeking a second
extension of the term of the TIF District from thirty-five (35) years to forty-seven (47)
years.

8. This Intergovernmental Agreement is contingent in its entirety upon the Legislature’s

66



passage and the Governor’s approval of a Bill to extend the life of the Ottawa U.S.
Route 6 East TIF District for an additional twelve (12) years beyond its current
scheduled termination in tax year 2029 payable 2030, and further, subsequent approval
of an Ordinance by the City adopting the extension.

9. The City has determined that it wishes to reduce some of the negative impact on the
real estate tax base of the Community College District caused by the creation and
extension of the TIF District.

10. The City wishes to exercise its authority under Section 5/11-74.4-7 of the TIF Act to
declare, on an annual basis, a certain amount of the incremental property tax revenues
as surplus funds (as defined in the TIF Act), to be returned to the County Collector of
LaSalle County for distribution to all taxing districts as described in Section I(B)(1) below,
including the Community College, from the Special Tax Allocation Fund established for
the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF District. Any surplus payments provided for
hereunder are not payments in lieu of taxes as defined in the TIF Act.

11. In consideration of the City’s pledge to reimburse the Community College District as
described herein, the Community College District agrees that it shall provide a written
letter and/or resolution of support that is acceptable to City and further take no action,
directly or indirectly,  to object to the City’s initiative to secure an extension of the term
of the U.S. Route 6 East District for an additional twelve year period.

12. The Parties declare that this Agreement is adopted pursuant to the 1970 Illinois
Constitution, Article VII, Section 10 and Chapter 65 Section 5/11-74.4-4(b) of the TIF
Act and other applicable statutes and will become effective on January 1, 2030.  As of
January 1, 2030, the existing Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be
terminated without further action and this Agreement shall be in full force and effect.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows:

I. REIMBURSEMENT

A. TAX INCREMENT

The Parties agree that the LaSalle County Clerk will provide to the Parties the actual annual gross real
estate tax increment generated within the TIF District and within the boundaries of the Community
College District and report such increment to the Parties. 

B. REIMBURSEMENT CALCULATION

1. Surplus Funds:

a. In exchange for the Community College District’s support, the City agrees that
commencing with tax year 2030 payable 2031, the City will declare as “Surplus Funds”
and set aside annually for the life of the TIF extension one hundred percent (100%)
of the gross real estate tax increment deposited into the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East
Special Tax Allocation Fund for all parcels within the TIF District that are currently
developed with a fully completed and assessed building value or fully completed and

67



assessed parking lot value  as of 1/1/2024 (the “Developed Parcels”). The Community
College District shall then receive from the LaSalle County Collector, pursuant to
Section 11-74.4-7 of the TIF Act, its pro-rata share of the total amount of declared
“surplus funds” as part of the annual distribution to the respective taxing districts in the
same manner and proportion as the most recent distribution by the LaSalle County
Collector to the affected districts of real property taxes from real property in the TIF
District Redevelopment Project Area. The Community College District shall use such
funds received under paragraph 1 for any purposes as allowed by law.

b. Any parcels that are vacant as of 1/1/2024 shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration
(the “Vacant Parcels”).  For all purposes of this Agreement, the term “vacant” shall
mean any parcel that does not have a fully assessed building or parking lot constructed
thereon as of 1/1/2024.

c. The Parties agree that all new annual real estate tax increment that is generated due to
increased assessments resulting from new construction, expansions, rehabilitation/
renovation projects (“new development”), pursuant to a Redevelopment Agreement
approved by the City after 1/1/2024, shall be exempt from the Surplus declaration.

d. The parcels described in (b) and © above are defined as “Exempt Parcels”.

2. Payment to Community College District for Reimbursement of Capital Costs:

a. Commencing in tax year 2030 payable 2031 and each year thereafter, the City agrees to
annually reimburse to the Community College District three percent (3%) of the new
real estate tax increment generated by the Exempt Parcels. The School District shall use
this reimbursed sum for the expenditures of capital costs as authorized by law.

b. The City will pay the sum described above to the Community College District from the
Special Tax Allocation Fund as an impact fee to be used for capital costs, pursuant to
current Section 4-3(q)(7) of the TIF Act, and the Community College District shall
provide the City with a list of such expenditures annually.

C. REIMBURSEMENT TIMING

The City shall pay the sum determined above to the Community College District in two installments,
such being made within sixty (60) days of the City’s receipt from the County of the second installment
and the final installment, respectively, of real estate tax increment generated as a preference and in the
same proportions as actually received by the City provided that the Community College District has
filed with the City a list of eligible project costs equal to or exceeding the calculated sum to be paid to
the Community College District to the extent funds received are for capital costs under Section I(B)(2).

II. GENERAL
Binding Effect:

This Agreement shall be binding on the Parties and their respective successors--including
successors in office. 

68



Governing Law:

This Agreement is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of Illinois.

Term:

This Agreement shall become effective on January 1, 2030. As of January 1, 2030, the existing
Intergovernmental Agreement between the parties will be terminated without further action and this
Agreement shall be in full force and effect. The obligation of the Parties hereto shall continue for the
duration of the TIF District but only if the TIF District is legislatively extended. The TIF District shall
terminate upon completion of all redevelopment projects or forty-seven (47) years from the creation
of the TIF District, if legislatively extended, whichever occurs first.  Whether the TIF District exists for
the entire forty-seven (47) years or terminates earlier upon completion of all redevelopment projects,
the City will pay in the following year thereafter, the sums due to the Community College District for
the prior year or years. The City shall terminate the District upon completion of payment of costs paid
for any bond debt service, private redevelopment agreement obligations, and any public redevelopment
and other eligible project costs.

Amendments, Waivers, Modifications:

No amendment, waiver or modification of any term or condition of this Agreement shall be
binding or effective for any purpose unless expressed in writing and adopted by each of the Parties as
required by law.

Waiver of All Rights to Contest TIF District:

The Community College District by its execution and approval of this Agreement hereby waives
forever any and all right to directly or indirectly set aside, modify or contest in any manner the
establishment, administration or legislative extension of the Ottawa U.S. Route 6 East TIF District
including the Redevelopment Project Area, Plan and Projects. Nothing contained herein is to be
construed to give the Community College District any right to participate in the administration of the
TIF District or Plan or Projects.

Enlargement of the TIF District:

The City agrees that it will notify the Community College District of any proposed enlargement
of the TIF District at least 60 days prior to the adoption of ordinances changing the District boundaries.

Amending the TIF District:

The City will not otherwise amend the TIF Plan except after providing written notice to the
Community College District and holding such public hearings as required by statute.

Real Estate Tax Increment Information:

(1) The Administrators of the TIF Plan and City agree to provide the Community College
District with information developed to establish the initial equalized assessed valuation of
the TIF District and the calculations for successive years’ computation of the real estate tax

69



increment for the TIF District as a whole and, if possible, for the Community College
District alone. 

(2) The City agrees that its Administrators shall provide the Community College District with
a copy of the TIF Annual Report when it is presented to the City Council.  Such Report
shall set forth: (a) the balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund (“Fund”) at the beginning
of the year; (b) all amounts deposited in the Fund by source; © all expenditures from the
Fund by categories; and (d) the balance in the Fund at the end of the year by source.

Complete Agreement:

This Agreement expresses the complete and final understanding of the Parties with respect to
the subject matter.  Any existing agreements in conflict  herewith are hereby repealed.

Authority to Execute:

The undersigned represent that they have the authority of their respective governing authorities
to execute this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ______
day of __________________, 2024.

ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY CITY OF OTTAWA, 
COLLEGE DISTRICT 513 an Illinois Municipal Corporation

By: __________________________ By: __________________________
Chairman Mayor

Attest: ________________________ Attest: ________________________
Secretary City Clerk

H:\OTTAWA\TIF 2 (Rt 6 East)\TIF Extension\IGAs\IVCC\IVCC IGA_Rt6 E TIF 2nd Extension 022824.wpd

70



Action Item 19 
 
 
Audit Services 
 
The administration recommends accepting the proposal by Sikich LLP to extend their 
contract for independent audit services for fiscal years 2024, 2025, and 2026. 
 
The proposed fees (including expenses) are as follows: 

 
   2024       2025       2026  
$44,000  $46,200  $48,510 

 
 
The initial contract with Sikich LLP for a three-year term was approved at the May 13, 
2021, Board of Trustees’ meeting. Board Policy 4.6 requires the College to solicit bids for 
auditing firms every six years. 
 
This auditing firm has been very thorough, responsive, and provided great service.  
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends authorization to enter into a three-year contract 
with Sikich, LLP for financial auditing services at the rates stated above. 
 
 
KPI 6: Resource Management 

71



 

 Action Item 20 

 
 
Board Policy (approval) 
 
Board Policy 01.08 – Board Meetings and Operations is an update to the policy based on 
current practice, as well as updates related to the Open Meetings Act. This policy was 
reviewed by the Planning Committee in February, 2024 and are being brought forward for 
approval due to the nature of the revisions and changes.  

 

 

Recommendation: 
 
Approve Board Policy, as presented. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



Board Policy 01.08 page 1 

The Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College exists to aid in the conducting of the 
peoples’ business, and the Board believes that the people have a right to be informed as to the 
purpose and conduct of their business.  To that end, it is the policy of the Board that all of their 
actions and resolutions be taken publicly and that all their deliberations be conducted openly unless 
excepted by the Illinois Open Meetings Act, (5 ILCS 120/2 (c)), said exceptions designed 
specifically to protect the public interest or the privacy of an individual. 

Regular Meetings 
The regular meetings of the Board of Trustees shall be held once a month at such times, places, 
and dates as are fixed by the Board of Trustees at the beginning of each calendar year.  Public 
notice of the schedule of regular meetings shall be given by posting the same in the principal office 
of the College, on the College website, and by sending a copy of the same to any news medium 
having filed a request for such notice and having an address or telephone number within the IVCC 
district.  If a change is made in a regularly scheduled meeting dates or time, at least ten days notice 
of the change will be given by posting on the College website and with publication in the 
newspaper of general circulation in the College district.  Further, public notice of regular meetings 
will be given at least 48 hours in advance of the regular meeting and the public notice shall include 
an agenda of the business to be considered by the Board of Trustees.  This notice will be sent 
through a press release, as well as posted on the College website. 

Special, Rescheduled and Reconvened Meetings 
Public notice will be given at least 48 hours prior to a special meeting, a rescheduled regular 
meeting, or a reconvened meeting, and said notice will include the agenda of the meeting.  Public 
notice of a reconvened meeting will not be given if the following conditions apply: 

1) there is no change in the original agenda of the original meeting;
2) the original meeting was open to the public; and
3) the reconvened meeting will be held within 24 hours, and/or an announcement of

the time and place of the reconvened meeting was made at the original meeting.

Emergency Meetings 
In the event of a bonafide emergency as outlined in the Illinois Open Meetings Act, a meeting may 
be called without formal notice so long as notice is given as soon as possible and prior to the 
meeting.  Public notice of such a meeting will be given to any news medium which has filed an 
annual request for notice and will be posted on the College website.   

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Board Meetings and Operations Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Number: 01.08 Last Revised: 02/25/2010 

73



Board Policy 01.08  page 2 

Closed Sessions 
At a meeting for which proper notice has been given, the Board may close all or part of the meeting 
by a majority vote of a quorum present for any of the exceptions stipulated in the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/2 (c)).  The specific authorized reasons to enter into a closed session 
must be stated in the motion, recorded in the minutes, and approved by a roll call vote.  A single 
vote may be taken to close a series of meetings provided they are scheduled to be held within a 
period of three months of the vote and each meeting involves discussion of the same matter.   
 
The following subjects may be discussed in closed session: 
1. The appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of specific 

employees, specific individuals who serve as independent contractors, or specific volunteers 
of the public body or legal counsel for the public body, including hearing testimony on a 
complaint lodged against an employee, independent contractor or volunteer of the public body 
or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its validity. 

2. Collective negotiating matters between the public body and its employees or their 
representatives, or deliberations concerning salary schedules for one or more classes of 
employees. 

3. The selection of a person to fill a public office, as defined in this Act, including a vacancy in a 
public office, when the public body is given power to appoint under law or ordinance, or the 
discipline, performance or removal of the occupant of a public office, when the public body is 
given power to remove the occupant under law or ordinance. 

4. Evidence or testimony presented in open hearing, or in closed hearing where specifically 
authorized by law, to a quasi-adjudicative body, as defined in this Act, provided that the body 
prepares and makes available for public inspection a written decision setting forth its 
determinative reasoning. 

5. The purchase or lease of real property for the use of the public body, including meetings held 
for the purpose of discussing whether a particular parcel should be acquired. 

6. The setting of a price for sale or lease of property owned by the public body. 
7. The sale or purchase of securities, investments, or investment contracts. 
8. Security procedures, school building safety, and the use of personnel and equipment to respond 

to an actual, a threatened, or a reasonably potential danger to the safety of employees, students, 
staff, the public, or public property. 

9. Student disciplinary cases. 
10. The placement of individual students in special education programs and other matters relating 

to individual students. 
11. Litigation, when an action against, affecting or on behalf of the particular public body has been 

filed and is pending before a court or administrative tribunal, or when the public body finds 
that an action is probable or imminent, in which case the basis for the finding shall be recorded 
and entered into the minutes of the closed meeting.   

12. And, other matters permitted by law and specified in (5 ILCS 120/2 [12-24]). 
13. In any situation where this policy differs from the statute, the statute will have the guiding 

force of judgement. 
 

No final action will be taken in a closed meeting.  All resolutions and actions of the Board of 
Trustees will be taken in open session. 
 

74



Board Policy 01.08  page 3 

All persons entitled to or invited to attend closed sessions, and all persons consulted or directed to 
prepare materials or render services for such meetings shall consider all topics, discussions, 
instructions, and materials pertinent there to be confidential and shall not release to any party 
information concerning such meetings; provided, however, that the information may be released 
upon authorization of the Board of Trustees by a majority vote of a quorum of the voting Board 
members, or as otherwise required by law. 
 
No actions taken pursuant to this policy shall be in contradiction of the rights of any individual 
under the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 
 
Minutes of Meetings 
The Board of Trustees will keep written minutes of all the meetings whether open or closed, and 
a verbatim record of all closed meetings will be taken in the form of an audio or video recording.  
Minutes shall include, but not be limited to the following: 
 

1) the date, time and place of the meeting; 
2) the members of the Board recorded as either present or absent, as well as whether 

the members are present physically or electronically/telephonically; and  
3) a summary of discussion of all matters proposed, deliberated, or decided, and a 

record of any votes taken. 
 
The minutes of the meetings open to the public shall be available for public inspection within seven 
days of the approval of such minutes by the Board. Such minutes are posted on the College website.  
 
Recording of Proceedings and Verbatim Records 
Any person may record the proceedings of the Board of Trustees meeting by tape, film, or other 
means if (a) such recording does not disrupt the meeting; (b) a witness required to testify does not 
object; and (c) if there is compliance with the media access procedures of the Board. 
 
A verbatim record of all closed sessions will be kept and a verbatim record may be destroyed 
without the necessity of approval from a records commission after18 months of the completion of 
the meeting recorded; but only after the following occurs: 
 

1) the public body approves the destruction of a particular recording; and 
2) the public body approves minutes of the closed session that meet the written 

minutes requirements specified above in the policy section labeled, “minutes of 
meetings.” 

 
Unless the Board of Trustees has made a determination that a verbatim recording no longer 
requires confidential treatment or otherwise consents to disclosure, the verbatim record of a 
meeting closed to the public shall not be opened for public inspection or subject to discovery in 
any administrative or judicial proceeding other than one brought to enforce the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120). 
 
Review of Closed Session Minutes 

75



Board Policy 01.08  page 4 

The Board of Trustees shall periodically, but no less than semiannually, meet to review the minutes 
of all closed session meetings.  At such meetings a determination shall be made and reported in an 
open session that: 
 

a) the need for confidentiality still exists as to all or part of those minutes; or 
b) the minutes or portions thereof no longer require confidential treatment and are 

available for public inspection. 
 
Minutes of meetings closed to the public shall be available only after the Board determines that it 
is no longer necessary to protect the public interest or the privacy of an individual.  
 
Quorum 
Except as otherwise provided by the Illinois Open Meetings Act, aA majority of the voting 
members of the Board shall be physically present to constitute a quorum for the transaction of 
business, in accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act.  If a quorum of the members of the 
public body is physically present, electronic/telephonic attendance by a Board member is permitted 
if the Board member is unable to be physically present due to personal illness or disability; 
employment purposes or the business of the public body; or a family or other emergency.  If 
electronic/telephonic attendance is necessary, then, in addition to the statutory requirements of the 
Illinois Open Meetings Act, the voice of that Board member shall be available to everyone in the 
meeting room, and the voices of other Board members and the public in attendance shall be 
available to the Board member in electronic/telephonic attendance.  A majority of those voting on 
an issue shall determine the outcome thereof.  Less than a quorum may adjourn any meeting to a 
future date.   
 
Board Meeting Agenda 
The President of the College and the Secretary to the Board, in consultation with the Chair of the 
Board of Trustees as needed, shall be responsible for preparing and transmitting to the members 
of the Board and the news media an agenda for each meeting of the Board.   
 
In consultation with the President, the Board may establish procedures for the preparation of 
documents for Board meetings to ensure that there is adequate time for Board members to review 
and prepare for the business that is to be conducted. 
 
The order of business for regular meetings of the Board will include but not be limited to the 
following: 
 

1) Call to Order 
2) Pledge of Allegiance 
3) Roll Call 
4) Approval of Agenda 
5) Public Comment 
6) Campus Updates (if any) 
7) Consent Agenda 
8) President’s Report 
9) Committee Reports 

76



Board Policy 01.08  page 5 

10) Action Items 
11) Information Items 
12) Trustee Comment 
13) Closed Session (if any) 
14) Adjournment 

 
 
Rules of Procedure 
The Board of Trustees will conduct its meetings in accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, 
the Rules and Regulations of the Illinois Community College Board, and when other statutes and 
regulations do not apply, Roberts Rules of Order, as revised. 
 
Board Committees 
The Chair of the Board may appoint committees as they are deemed necessary by a majority vote 
of the Board.  A committee shall report recommendations to the Board for appropriate action and 
the committee may be dissolved when its report is completed and accepted by the full Board.   
 
Any committee created by the Board of Trustees is deemed a public body and is subject to all the 
requirements of the Illinois Open Meetings Act.  The majority of a quorum of a committee is 
determined by the number of members needed to take action.   
 
Telephonic and Electronic Assemblages 
When a majority of a quorum of Board members participate in any telephonic, eEmail or Iinternet 
exchange of communication, they are subject to the provisions and stipulations of the Illinois Open 
Meetings Act, 5 ILCS 120.   
 

 

77



 
 
 Action Item 21 
 
 
Staff Appointment – Julia “Kathy” Hart, Dean of Institutional Effectiveness 
 
The search committee has selected Julia “Kathy” Hart as Dean of Institutional Effectiveness.  
Information on this candidate is attached. 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the appointment of Julia “Kathy” Hart as Dean of 
Institutional Effectiveness at an annualized salary of $83,000, effective March 18, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
KPI 4: Support for Employees 
KPI 5: District Population Served 

78



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
Dean of Institutional Effectiveness 

Number of  
Applicants: 10 

Number of Applicants Interviewed: 
2 (3 offered; one declined) 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Dr. Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
• Dawn Watson, Data Analyst 
• Lisa Witalka, Curriculum and Course Schedule Coordinator 
• Jayna Leipart Guittilla, Collection Development and Access Librarian 
• Ellen Evancheck, Instructional Technology Systems Coordinator 
• Dawn Chambers, Faculty 
• Lori Cinotte, Faculty 
• Tracy Lee, Faculty and AFT Local 1810 President 
• Tom Quigley, Director of Admissions and Records 

 
Applicant Recommended: Julia “Kathy” Hart 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• University of Missouri, Columbia, MO – Doctorate of Education, Educational Leadership 
and Policy Analysis and M.A., Library Science 

• Northwest Missouri State University, Maryville, MO – B.S., Office Information Systems 
 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – IR/IT Programmer Analyst, Collection 
Development and Access Librarian 

• Northwest Missouri State University, B.D. Owens Library, Maryville, MO – Director for 
Library Services and Operations; Assistant Director of Library Services and Co-
coordinator Brick and Click Libraries Conference; Head Librarian for Access Services; 
Electronic Resource Management Information Librarian; Electronic Serials Specialist, 
Library Generalist / Course Reserve Specialist 

 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Doctorate of Education, Educational Leadership and Policy Analysis. 
2. Community college experience and familiarity with Illinois Valley Community College. 
3. Director-level experience and extensive institutional research background. 

 
Recommended Salary:  $83,000 annualized 
 

Effective Date:  03/18/2024 
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

79



 
 
 Action Item 22 
 
 
Staff Appointment – Crystal Credi, Dean of Student Success 
 
The search committee has selected Crystal Credi as Dean of Student Success. Information 
on this candidate is attached. 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
The administration recommends the appointment of Crystal Credi as Dean of 
Student Success at an annualized salary of $77,000, effective March 18, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
KPI 4: Support for Employees 
KPI 5: District Population Served 

80



RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
Dean of Student Success 

Number of  
Applicants:  20 

Number of Applicants Interviewed:  
Zoom interviews conducted on five semi-
finalists; one applicant withdrew, and three 
were invited for on-campus interviews (one 
finalist withdrew prior to their scheduled 
interview) 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Mark Grzybowski, Vice President for Student Services 
• Cory Tomasson, Faculty 
• Jim Moskalewicz, Counselor 
• Wendi Harmon, Counselor 
• Chris Herman, Director of Project Success 
• Diane Scoma, Project Success Counselor 
• Lisa Witalka, Curriculum and Course Scheduler 

 
Applicant Recommended: Crystal Credi 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• Lewis University, Romeoville, IL - Masters of Arts in Organizational Leadership 
• Lewis University, Romeoville, IL – Graduate Certificate Higher Ed Student Services 
• Illinois State University, Normal, IL – Bachelor of Science, Communication 
• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Associates in Arts and Associates in 

Science 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Special Populations Transition Specialist; 
Student Services Administrative Assistant; Counseling Center Administrative Assistant; 
Enrollment Services Assistant 

• Office Max (Boise), Peru, IL – Sourcing Specialist 
 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Experience that has allowed the candidate to become well versed in many areas of 
student services:  admissions and records, counseling, articulation, and retention. 

2. The candidate currently serves the institution as the HOUSE liaison and Student Benefits 
Navigator, both positions that are rooted in student success. 

3. Experience with Title IX fact finding investigations. 
4. Understand grants and how they function. 

Recommended Salary:  $77,000 annualized Effective Date:  03/18/2024  
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

81



Board Policy 01.18 page 1 

Groups or individuals who desire to have a specific topic placed on the agenda shall submit a 
written request at least 10 days prior to the public Board meeting to the attention of the President.  
Such request shall explain the topic and provide rationale for the topic to be placed on the agenda. 

Presentations during public comment by any one individual shall be limited to three minutes.  The 
maximum amount of time which will be provided for public comment at any one meeting shall be 
15 minutes.  It shall be the discretion of the Board if after 15 minutes, more time shall be allowed 
for public comment.  It shall be the option of the Board Chair to halt presentations which repeat 
points already addressed or are not per the rules herein established. 

Speakers may offer objective criticisms of school operations and programs that concern them and 
have not been satisfactorily addressed through the College’s administrative chain of command. 
Comments from the public should be limited to topics of concern or actions relevant to the Board 
of Trustees. 

The Board Chair shall have the authority to determine procedural matters regarding public 
participation not otherwise defined in Board Policy. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Appearance Before the Board Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Number: 01.18 Last Revised: 02/25/2010 

Information Item 23.1

82



Board Policy 01.19 page 1 

As a public institution, public access to the records of Illinois Valley Community College is 
governed by the Federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, the Illinois Local Records 
Act and the Illinois Freedom of Information Act.  Information which is available for public 
disclosure and procedures to obtain that information shall be made available through the Freedom 
of Information Act Officer.  The Freedom of Information Act Officer for the District is the Vice 
President for Business Services and Finance.  

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Freedom of Information Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Number: 01.19 Last Revised: 02/25/2010 

Information Item 23.2

83



Procedure 01.19.00   page 1 

 

 
The Freedom of Information Act 5 ILCS 140/ (FOIA) is a state statute that provides the public 
with the right to access government documents and records. The law provides that a person can 
ask a public body for a copy of its records on a specific subject and the public body must provide 
those records, unless there is an exemption in the statute that protects those records from disclosure 
(for example: records containing information concerning trade secrets or personal privacy). 
 
Any person, group, association, corporation, firm, partnership, or organization has the right to file 
a FOIA request to any state or local public body. 
 
Every public body must designate at least one person to act as the FOIA officer and may have 
more than one FOIA officer. Every public body must prominently display at its office and make 
available information including the name(s) of its FOIA officer(s), information on how to submit 
a FOIA request, and a brief description of the office, including its purpose, budget, and number of 
employees. This information must also be posted on the public body’s website. 
 
FOIA requests must be submitted in writing, but will be accepted by mail, personal delivery, fax, 
and e-mail. 
 
Responding to FOIA Requests 
 
A public body must respond to a FOIA request within five business days after the public body 
receives the request.  The time period may be extended for an additional five business days from 
the date of the original due date if: 
 

• The requested information is stored at a different location; 
• The request requires the collection of a substantial number of documents; 
• The request requires an extensive search; 
• The requested records have not been located and require additional effort to find; 
• The requested records need to be reviewed by staff who can determine whether they are 

exempt from FOIA; 
• The requested records cannot be produced without unduly burdening the public body or 

interfering with its operations; or 
• The request requires the public body to consult with another public body that has 

substantial interest in the subject matter of the request. 
 

Illinois Valley Community College Procedure 
  

Subject: Freedom of Information  Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
   Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 
Number: 01.19.00  Last Revised: 02/25/2010 
      

84



Procedure 01.19.00   page 2 

If additional time is needed, the public body must notify the requestor in writing within five 
business days after the receipt of the request of the statutory reasons for the extension and when 
the requested information will be produced. Commercial requests have an extended timeline, as 
outlined in the Freedom of Information Act. 
 
Requests may be denied as “unduly burdensome.” in accordance with the Freedom of Information 
Act. This would apply if the request is categorical in nature and incapable of being narrowed or 
reduced, or the burden on the public body to produce the information outweighs the public interest 
in the information.  Before denying a request for this reason, the requestor must be given an 
opportunity to reduce the request to manageable proportions. If the same person requests the same 
information more than three times, it would be considered unduly burdensome. Requests may be 
denied for other reasons as set forth within the Freedom of Information Act.  
 
A person whose request to inspect or copy a public record is denied by a public body, except the 
General Assembly and committees, commissions, and agencies thereof, may file a request for 
review with the Public Access Counselor established in the Office of the Attorney General not 
later than 60 days after the date of the final denial. The request for review must be in writing, 
signed by the requester, and include (i) a copy of the request for access to records and (ii) any 
responses from the public body. A request for review regarding a commercial request may only be 
for the limited purpose of reviewing whether the public body properly determined that the request 
was made for a commercial purpose. 
 
The first 50 pages of black and white, letter or legal sized copies are free. Any additional pages 
will be charged at 15 cents per page.  Color copies and abnormal sized copies will be charged at 
the actual cost of copying. If requested, electronic documents will be provided if feasible. 
 

 

85



Board Policy 01.20 page 1 

Members of the Board of Trustees have authority only when acting as a Board in legal session. 
The Board will not be bound in any way by any action or statements by an individual Board 
member or employee unless such action or statement is pursuant to specific instructions by the 
Board when legally in session.  Action of such member or members must be confirmed by the 
Board. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Subject: Authority of Board Members 

Number: 01.20 Last Revised: 02/25/2010 

Information Item 23.3

86



Board Policy 01.23 page 1 

When emergency situations arise which are not covered by Board Policy, the President shall have 
the authority to take whatever steps are necessary to insure the safety of students and staff.  The 
President will keep the Board apprised of the situation as soon as practical. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Emergency Action Effective Date: 02/25/2010 
Last Reviewed: 02/25/2010 

Number: 01.23 Last Revised: 02/25/2010 

Information Item 23.4

87



Board Policy 02.12 page 1 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College to annually review 
and determine appropriate student fees. Examples of fees include, but are not limited to: activity 
fees, registration fee, course lab fees, technology fees, and other similar assessments. The Board 
reserves the right to amend fees without prior notice. 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Fees Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010 

Number: 02.12 Last Revised: 10/19/2010 

Information Item 23.5

88



Board Policy 02.13 page 1 

It is the policy of the Board of Trustees of Illinois Valley Community College that students will 
be provided an opportunity to achieve objectives without the demotivating effects of previously 
earned failing grades. To be eligible for consideration, a student must meet the following criteria: 

A. The student must not have attended any post-secondary educational institution
for two consecutive semesters. (Summer sessions are not counted as semesters
for this policy, but three consecutive academic quarters are considered the
equivalent of two semesters).

B. Upon returning to IVCC after the two consecutive semester out-of-school
period, the student must complete a minimum of 12 semester hours with a grade
point average of 2.00 or better.

C. Upon satisfying criterion (B), the student must apply to the Director of
Admissions and Records for implementation of the Grade Exclusion Policy. Only
failing (“F” or “WF”) grades will be excluded from computation of the
cumulative grade point average. If the student wishes to repeat some courses in
which failing grades were received, the student may utilize the college repeat
policy for those courses by completing the appropriate form in the Admissions
and Records office. Students planning to transfer to another institution are
cautioned that the receiving college may use all grades earned in repeated or
excluded courses for computation of grade point average for admission or other
purposes.

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 

Subject: Grade Exclusion Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
Last Reviewed: 10/19/2010 

Number: 02.13 Last Revised: 10/19/2010 

Information Item 23.6

89



Board Policy 02.22  page 1 

Information Item 23.7 

 

 
Placement in English and Mmath courses is done through multiple measures, including, but not 
limited to, high school grade point average, successful completion of high school coursework, 
standardized testing, and/ or high school equivalency testing. 
 
IVCC recommends all students take math placement tests. 
 
Administrative Procedure: 
The IVCC Course Placement Guide describes how multiple measures are used for placement.  The 
guide can be found at www.ivcc.edu/placement. 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Board Policy 
  

Subject: Academic Placement  Effective Date: 10/19/2010 
   Last Reviewed: 01/14/2021 
Number: 02.22  Last Revised: 01/14/2021 
      

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Right

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt,
Underline

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, 12 pt

Formatted: Highlight

90

http://www.ivcc.edu/placement


Information Item 23.8 

 

 

 

 

Faculty Emeritus: 

Faculty Emeritus status may be requested for individuals who meet the following criteria for their 
role: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as a full-time faculty member (including counselors) of L-
P-O Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College, combined with 25 or more total 
years in the field of education or their specific area of expertise at the point of retirement; 
and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has upheld  
• the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during their 

employment; and, 
• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the community. 

Adjunct Faculty Emeritus:  

Adjunct Faculty Emeritus status may be requested for individuals who meet the following criteria 
for their role: 

• Fifteen* years or more of service as an adjunct faculty member (or counselor**) of L-P-O 
Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College combined with 25 or more total years 
in the field of education or their specific area of expertise at the point of retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has upheld  
• the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during their 

employment; and, 
• Has championed or will continue to champion their profession and the role of the College 

in the community. 

*Fifteen years is calculated by Human Resources for recognition purposes. In cases of significant 
breaks in service, the number of total credit hours taught will be considered.  

**Note: Part-time counselors who served the majority of their time after 2023 should be nominated 
as staff. Those who served the majority of their time before 2023 should be nominated as adjunct 
faculty. 

 

Illinois Valley Community College Administrative Procedure 
  

Subject: Faculty and Adjunct Faculty Effective Date: 02/26/2024 
 Emeritus/Emerita Last Reviewed:  
Number: 01.24.01 Last Revised:   

91



 
 

Recommendation Process: 

The recommendation is submitted by department or division colleagues, former students, or 
community members. Individuals may not be nominated by spouses or immediate family 
members. In those cases, the family member is encouraged to reach out to the current department 
for assistance to prepare a recommendation. The recommendation will have a verification of years 
of service and meritorious service and eligible individuals will be reviewed by the Faculty 
Emeritus Review Committee. In the case where a member of the committee submits a nomination, 
they must abstain from voting on that individual. The committee forwards the nominees to the 
President for submission to the Board of Trustees. 

In addition to the benefits and privileges received by all retired faculty and staff and any other 
benefits to which the individual may be entitled, those granted emeritus status will also receive: 

• A resolution naming and honoring the employee with the appropriate Emeritus title; 
• Listing on the College website and identified publications related to History of the College;  
• Recognition at the Employee Recognition Event for the year they are nominated; and 
• Use of the appropriate title in community and professional activities. 

In a situation where an employee qualifies in more than one category, only one status may be 
conferred. Preference for the category may be made based on the number of years of service in 
each category or as requested by the nominee or the committee. Emeritus status is only awarded 
to individuals who have retired from the institution. Emeritus status may be awarded 
posthumously. The Board of Trustees retains the authority to withdraw any Emeritus status at its 
discretion, as it deems necessary and appropriate, with a majority vote of the Board. 

The review committee will consider submissions as they become available, however based on the 
volume of submissions, the timeline to approve the emeritus status may vary. 

92



Information Item 23.9 

 

 

 

 

Emeritus status may be requested for staff or administrators who meet the following criteria for 
their role: 

• Fifteen years or more of service as a full or part-time staff member* and/or administrator 
of L-P-O Junior College or Illinois Valley Community College, combined with 25 or more 
total years in the field of education or their specific area of expertise at the point of 
retirement; and 

• Retires/retired from the College; and 
• Has demonstrated professional competence, provided meritorious service, and has upheld  
• the mission, vision, strategic objectives and core values of the College during their 

employment; and, 
• Has championed or will continue to champion the role of the College in the community. 

*Note: Part-time counselors who served the majority of their time after 2023 should be nominated 
as staff. Those who served the majority of their time before 2023 should be nominated as adjunct 
faculty. 

Recommendation Process: 

The recommendation is submitted by department or division colleagues, former students, or 
community members. Individuals may not be nominated by spouses or immediate family 
members. In those cases, the family member is encouraged to reach out to the current department 
for assistance to prepare a recommendation. The recommendation will have a verification of years 
of service and meritorious service and eligible individuals will be reviewed by the 
Staff/Administrator Emeritus Review Committee. In the case where a member of the committee 
submits a nomination, they must abstain from voting on that individual. The committee forwards 
the nominees to the President for submission to the Board of Trustees. 

In addition to the benefits and privileges received by all retired faculty and staff and any other 
benefits to which the individual may be entitled, those granted emeritus status will also receive: 

• A resolution naming and honoring the employee with the appropriate Emeritus title; 
• Listing on the College website and identified publications related to History of the College; 
• Recognition at the Employee Recognition Event for the year they are nominated;  and 
• Use of the appropriate title in community and professional activities. 

In a situation where an employee qualifies in more than one category, only one status may be 
conferred. Preference for the category may be made based on the number of years of service in 

Illinois Valley Community College Administrative Procedure 
  

Subject: Staff and Administrator Effective Date: 02/26/2024 
 Emeritus/Emerita Last Reviewed:  
Number: 01.24.02 Last Revised:   

93



 
 

each category or as requested by the nominee or the committee. Emeritus status is only awarded 
to individuals who have retired from the institution. Emeritus status may be awarded 
posthumously. The Board of Trustees retains the authority to withdraw any Emeritus status at its 
discretion, as it deems necessary and appropriate, with a majority vote of the Board. 

The review committee will consider submissions as they become available, however based on the 
volume of submissions, the timeline to approve the emeritus status may vary. 

94



  Information Item 23.10 

RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
Curriculum and Course Scheduler 
Academic Affairs 
 

Number of  
Applicants: 9 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 3 
 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Gary Roberts, Vice President for Academic Affairs 
• Ron Groleau, Dean of Natural Sciences and Business 
• Polly Ragazincky, Administrative Assistant to the Vice President for Academic Affairs 
• Dawn Watson, Data Analyst 

 
 
Applicant Recommended: Lisa Witalka 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• East High School, Rockford, IL – Diploma 
 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Career and Student Services Associate; 
Administrative Assistant, Purchasing Assistant, Fiscal Assistant for ITS, Utility Clerk 

• U.S. Foodservice, Streator, IL – Administrative Assistant 
• City of Ottawa Police Department, Ottawa, IL – Telecommunicator 

 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Past experiences with Colleague will greatly reduce the training required in this position. 
2. Familiar with the College and procedures related to scheduling and curriculum. 
3. Detail oriented and personable. 

 
Recommended Salary:  $23.50/hour 
 

Effective Date: 02/12/2023 
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

95



  Information Item 23.11 

RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
Dual Credit and Enrollment 
Coordinator 

Number of  
Applicants: 7 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 3 
 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Dr. Lirim Neziroski, Dean of Humanities, Fine Arts, and Social Sciences 
• Lea Solberg, Dual Credit and Enrollment Support Specialist 
• Susan Monroe, Alumni and Donor Relations Coordinator 
• Jeff Spanbauer, History/Anthropology Instructor and Co-Chair of Dual Credit 

Committee 
• Vince Brolley, Psychology Instructor and member of Dual Credit Committee 

 
 
Applicant Recommended: Sarah Trager 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• Eastern Illinois University, Charleston, IL – Master of Science, College Student Affairs, 
Counseling 

• Monmouth College, Monmouth, IL – Bachelor of Arts, Public Relations, Business 
Administration 

 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Assessment Center Coordinator 
• Wartburg College, Waverly, IA – Director of Campus Programming 
• Eastern Illinois University, Charleston, IL – Greek Substance Abuse Education 

Coordinator (Graduate Assistantship) 
 
This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 

1. Education, previous work experience, and strong familiarity with Dual Credit and 
placement testing at IVCC; 

2. Colleague experience; 
3. Possesses an established working relationship with high school counselors 
4. Transition from current position will allow for a reduced orientation period that allows 

this candidate to contribute to the program immediately 
 
Recommended Salary:  $60,889.64 annualized 
 

Effective Date:  03/25/2024 
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

96



  Information Item 23.12 

RECOMMENDED FOR STAFF APPOINTMENT 

FISCAL YEAR 2024 

 

Position To Be Filled: 
Technical Support Analyst 
Information Technology Services 
 

Number of  
Applicants: 6 

Number of Applicants 
Interviewed: 3 
 

Applicants Interviewed By: 
• Joel Kozlick, IT Support Lead 
• Danielle Jackson, Administrative Assistant II, Division of Natural Sciences and Business 
• Jacob Taylor, IT Infrastructure Operations Engineer 
• Chad Brokaw, Theatre Events and Technical Coordinator 
• Crystal Credi, Special Populations Transition Specialist 

 
 
Applicant Recommended: Juan Rodriguez 
 
Educational Preparation: 

• Rasmussen College, Romeoville, IL – Associate of Applied Science, Information 
Technology Management 

 
Experience: 

• Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, IL – Helpdesk Support Technician 
• Collegis Education, Oak Brook, IL – Technical Support Analyst 
• Rasmussen University, Romeoville, IL – Work Study 

This candidate is being recommended for employment for the following reasons: 
1. The candidate possesses a background in technology and higher education IT 

environments along with formal specialized education. 
2. Multiple years of experience working in the IT industry with a background in user 

support, supporting LMS, SIS and classroom environments. 
3. Good communication skills and experience that will allow this candidate to contribute 

immediately. 
 
Recommended Salary:  $22.43/hour 
 

Effective Date:  02/20/2024 
 

 
Mary Beth Herron 

Director of Human Resources 
 

 

97



  Information Item 23.13 

 

February 29, 2024 

 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 
Springfield, IL 62701-1711 
 

Re: 2024 Business/Industry Partnership Award 

 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend SABIC of Ottawa for the 
ICCTA 2024 Business/Industry Partnership Award. SABIC has been a valued partner of IVCC for well over 
35 years, as they have looked to the College for assistance in training their incumbent workforce, as well 
as future workforce. Whether registering employees in credit classes to upskill, contracting with IVCC’s 
Business Training Center for customized training for their incumbent workers, serving on Advisory 
Committee Meetings to ensure programs are up-to-date, and participating in career fairs, manufacturing 
expos and job fairs, SABIC has become a dependable member of the IVCC community as we work to 
enhance the labor force. SABIC has been a longtime member and supporter of the Chief Manufacturing 
Executive (CME) Networking Group, which was established in 2011 by the IVCC Continuing Education and 
Business Services Division and local workforce board, North Central Illinois (NCI) Works. 

The impact for alumni of IVCC and other community colleges has been allowing qualified candidates to 
apply for job opportunities in accordance with specific certificates or degrees. These opportunities range 
from entry level to supervisor positions and the company offers incentives for promotion when employees 
choose to continue on with their education and training by pursuing a certificate, degree, or industry 
recognized credential in their field. Through the use of the online job platform housed in IVCC’s Career 
Services office, employers can post jobs that are viewable to students and community members.  Relevant 
postings are also shared with instructors and program coordinators so that they can share with their class. 

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends SABIC for the 2024 Business/Industry 
Partnership Award. SABIC has been an integral partner for the College that has not only benefitted IVCC 
but also employees, students, and the community. 

Sincerely, 

 

Jay McCracken 
Board Vice Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

98



  Information Item 23.14 

 

February 29, 2024 

 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 
Springfield, IL 62701-1711 
 

Re: 2024 Award 

 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Lynn Keyt of LaSalle for 
the ICCTA 2024 Gregg Chadwick Student Service Scholarship. Lynn started at IVCC in 1995 and then, after 
time away, returned in 2019.  

Upon completion of her high school equivalency, Lynn has been an active student on campus. In her six 
semesters as a student, she has become one of the top leaders in Project Success, our federally funded 
TRiO program. Lynn received Project Success' Most Outstanding Participant in 2023 based on grades, 
participation, community service, and leadership. This is considered as the top award for Project Success 
students.  

Lynn consistently demonstrates her dedication by actively participating in the majority of Project Success 
workshops, maintaining regular communication with the staff, and exhibiting strong leadership skills 
within service projects through her active involvement in the leadership team. In addition, she serves the 
community as President of the Red Cross Club, Vice President of the Gender and Sexuality Alliance, and a 
member of organizations and honor societies. In each of these groups, service to the campus and the 
community at large is a key role. Lynn embraces every opportunity to serve others. 

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Lynn Keyt for the 2024 Gregg Chadwick Student 
Service Scholarship.  

Sincerely, 

 

Jay McCracken 
Board Vice Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

99



  Information Item 23.15 

 

March 15, 2024 

 

Illinois Community College Trustees Association 
401 E. Capitol, Suite 200 
Springfield, IL 62701-1711 
 

Re: 2024 Lifelong Learning Award 

 

Dear ICCTA Awards Committee, 

The Illinois Valley Community College Board of Trustees is pleased to recommend Gregory Williams of 
Ottawa for the ICCTA 2024 Lifelong Learning Award. Greg began his journey at IVCC in 2012, right out of 
high school with a plan to pursue engineering. He struggled to find his place in engineering, with academic 
challenges that had an impact on his grade point average. Over that next 6 years, he continued to move 
through majors of engineering and pre-med, waning in and out of financial aid, payment plans and failures 
– still working full time but not willing to let go of his dream of higher education. 

Finally in 2019, Greg found this his dream of pre-medicine as a career was still where his heart lay and his 
grades had improved. When a faculty member suggested nursing, something shifted for Greg. The 
knowledge he had gained in the pre-med courses was a strong foundation for the pre-nursing curriculum. 
His grade point average continued to improve and in 2020, he completed his CNA certificate and in 2021, 
he completed is Associate in General Studies.  

In Fall 2021, Greg started in the nursing program but it was still challenging and he was unable to complete 
one course, which then forced him to re-apply for Fall 2022. Since that time, Greg has successfully 
completed the first year and a half of the nursing program and is scheduled to graduate this Spring with 
his Associate in Applied Science degree in nursing. 

The IVCC Board of Trustees wholeheartedly recommends Greg for the 2024 Lifelong Learning Award. He 
has continued to return to IVCC with the goal of completing his degree, through personal loss and 
challenges but he has never given up. His drive and commitment to his dreams are commendable and we 
are so proud of his perseverance. Thank you for the opportunity to recognize Gregory for his outstanding 
dedication to life-long learning. 

Sincerely, 

 

Jay McCracken 
Board Vice Chair, Illinois Valley Community College 

100



Information Item 23.16 
 
 

Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty for 2024/2025 
 
The administration is pleased to announce the following non-tenured faculty will be 
reappointed for the academic year 2024/2025: 
 
 
• Lyndsey Beetz, Dental Hygiene Instructor/Coordinator 
• Christian Carboni, Welding Technology Instructor 
• Scott Fox, Manufacturing Technology Instructor 
• Jonathan Hubbell, Criminal Justice Instructor 
• Sara Legrenzi, Nursing Instructor 
• Camden Parks, Chemistry Instructor 
• Shannon Slaight-Brown, Art Instructor 
• Jennifer Timmers, Agriculture Instructor / Program Coordinator 
• Greg Whightsil, Industrial Maintenance and Electricity Instructor 
• Garrick Whitehead, Computer Networking and Information Technology Instructor 

 
 
 
 
 
KPI 3:  Support for Students 
KPI 5:  District Population Served 

101



N
AM

E
PO

SI
TI

O
N

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T 

/ 
D

IV
IS

IO
N

ST
AT

U
S 

(P
T)

Pa
rt

-t
im

e;
 

(F
T)

Fu
ll-

tim
e

D
at

e 
H

R 
Re

ce
iv

ed
 N

ot
ic

e 
/ 

Le
tt

er
 o

n 
Fi

le
 (Y

) /
 (N

)
Ef

fe
ct

iv
e

Re
as

on
Co

x,
 A

nt
ho

ny
As

sis
ta

nt
 C

oa
ch

 W
om

en
's 

So
cc

er
At

hl
et

ic
s

PT
02

.0
2.

20
24

 / 
Y

02
.0

2.
20

24
Re

sig
na

tio
n

Ko
zli

ck
, J

oe
l

IT
 S

up
po

rt
 L

ea
d

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

Se
rv

ic
es

FT
02

.2
2.

20
24

 / 
Y

03
.0

8.
20

24
Re

sig
na

tio
n

IT
EM

S 
FO

R 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
ST

AF
F 

SE
PA

RA
TI

O
N

S
14

-M
ar

-2
4

Information Item 23.17

102



211 East Chicago Avenue, Suite 1900  Chicago, Illinois  60611-2637   

Phone 800.232.6108  Fax 312.587.5107   CODA.ADA.org 

Via Email Transmission: Tracy_Morris@ivcc.edu 

February 26, 2024 

Dr. Tracy Morris 
President 
Illinois Valley Community College 
815 N. Orlando Smith Rd. 
Oglesby, IL 61348 

RE: Illinois Valley Community College, Oglesby, Illinois 
Dental Hygiene Program 
Status: Initial Accreditation  

Dear Dr. Morris, 

At its February 1, 2024 meeting, the Commission on Dental Accreditation (CODA) 
considered the site visit report of the developing dental hygiene program. The Commission 
also considered the institution’s response to the site visit report.  

Following consideration of the report, the Commission adopted a resolution granting the 
educational program the accreditation classification of “initial accreditation.”  The 
Commission's definitions of its accreditation classifications are linked below.    

Based on a review of the response, the Commission determined that the following 
recommendation contained in the site visit report remains unmet: #: 2.  The Commission 
specified that continued accreditation of the program will be dependent upon progress made 
in implementing the remaining recommendation contained in the formal report.  When 
Accreditation Standards are revised during the period in which the program is submitting 
progress reports, the program will be responsible for demonstrating compliance with the new 
standards. 

Requested Information for August 8, 2024 Commission Meeting 
The “Summary of Recommendations and Required Documentation” found at the end of this 
letter includes each stated recommendation and required documentation to submit with the 
progress report to demonstrate compliance. 

The Commission requires one (1) electronic copy of a detailed report addressing the concerns 
noted in this letter be submitted by May 15, 2024 for consideration at the Dental Hygiene 
Education Review Committee’s July 9-10, 2024 meeting and the Commission’s August 8, 
2024 meeting.   

At the link below, please find Guidelines for Preparation of Reports and Documentation 
Guidelines for Selected Recommendations to assist you in developing a focused, concise 

Information Item 23.18

103

https://coda.ada.org/en


Dr. Tracy Morris 
February 26, 2024 
Page 2 

 

response to the Commission’s recommendations.  Please note that reports that fail to adhere to 
the stated guidelines may be returned to the program and may not be reviewed at the assigned 
time. The Commission’s timelines for demonstration of full compliance will not be modified 
due to a delayed review resulting from improperly formatted reports.   
 
Instructions to assist you in developing and submitting an electronic copy are linked below.  
The electronic copy must include a signed verification page and must conform to the 
Commission’s electronic submission guidelines.   
 
In accordance with Commission policy, once a program is granted “initial accreditation” 
status, a site visit will be conducted prior to the first class of students/residents graduating for 
programs that are less than four (4) years in duration. The next site evaluation of the program 
has been scheduled for Spring 2026, based on the program’s reported enrollment date of its 
first class.  Additional information related to this site visit will be forwarded to you at a later 
date.  The classification of “initial accreditation” will be terminated at the end of two years 
following the projected enrollment date if students have not been enrolled. 
 
General Information 
The findings of the Commission on Dental Accreditation are noted in the attached 
Commission approved site visit report. Oral comments made by site visit team members 
during the course of the site visit are not to be construed as official site visit findings unless 
documented within the site visit report and may not be publicized.  Further, publication of site 
visit team members’ names and/or contact information is prohibited. 
 
One copy of this report has also been sent to the chief administrative officer and program 
director copied on this letter.  The Commission requests that a copy of this report be forwarded 
to the chairpersons and appropriate faculty. 
 
All institutions offering programs accredited by the Commission are expected to adhere to 
deadlines for requests for program information.  If an institution fails to comply with the 
Commission's request, or a prescribed deadline, it will be assumed that the institution no 
longer wishes to participate in the accreditation program.  In this event, the Commission will 
immediately notify the chief executive officer of the institution of its intent to withdraw the 
accreditation of the program(s) at its next scheduled meeting. 
 
Institutions/Programs are expected to follow Commission policy and procedure on privacy 
and data security related to compliance with the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (HIPAA).  The Commission’s statement on HIPAA, as well as the 
Privacy and Data Security Summary for Institutions/Programs (PDF), are found in the 
Policies/Guidelines section of the Commission’s website at https://coda.ada.org/policies-
and-guidelines/hipaa-compliance.  Programs that fail to comply with CODA’s policy will be 
assessed an administrative fee of $4000. 
 

104

https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/hipaa-compliance
https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/hipaa-compliance


Dr. Tracy Morris 
February 26, 2024 
Page 3 

 

The Commission expects institutions to keep the Commission informed as soon as possible of 
anticipated changes in any approved educational program offered, particularly in the areas of 
administration, enrollment, faculty, facilities and curriculum.  The Commission’s policy and 
guidelines for reporting program changes are linked below.  Guidelines for specific program 
changes, including reporting enrollment changes, adding sites where educational activity 
occurs, and developing a teach-out report are found on the Commission’s website. 
 
In accord with Federal regulation, the Commission is providing written notice of its decision 
to grant the educational program the status of “initial accreditation” to the Secretary of the 
United States Department of Education as well as the appropriate accrediting and state 
licensing/authorizing agencies.  Notice to the public is provided through the Commission’s 
listing of accredited programs. 
 
The Commission has authorized use of the following statement by institutions or programs 
that wish to announce their programmatic accreditation by the Commission.  Programs that 
wish to advertise the specific programmatic accreditation status granted by the Commission 
may include that information as indicated in italics below (see text inside square brackets); 
that portion of the statement is optional but, if used, must be complete and current. 
 
 The program in dental hygiene is accredited by the Commission on Dental 

Accreditation [and has been granted the accreditation status of “initial 
accreditation”].  The Commission is a specialized accrediting body recognized by the 
United States Department of Education.  The Commission on Dental Accreditation 
can be contacted at (312) 440-4653 or at 211 East Chicago Avenue, Chicago, IL  
60611. The Commission’s web address is:  http://coda.ada.org/.  

 
The staff of the Commission on Dental Accreditation is available for consultation to all 
educational programs which fall within the Commission's accreditation purview.  Educational 
institutions sponsoring dental education programs are encouraged to obtain such staff counsel 
and guidance by written or telephone request.  Consultation is provided on request prior to, as 
well as subsequent to, the Commission's granting accreditation to specific programs.  The 
Commission expects to be reimbursed if substantial costs are incurred. 
 
If this office can be of any assistance to you or members of your staff, please contact me at 
312-440-2695 or by e-mail, at navickask@ada.org. 
 
  

105

http://coda.ada.org/


Dr. Tracy Morris 
February 26, 2024 
Page 4 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Katie Navickas, BSDH, MA 
Manager, Allied Dental Education 
Commission on Dental Accreditation 
 
KN/ds 
 
Web Links: CODA Accreditation Status Definitions 

Guidelines for Preparation of Reports and Documentation Guidelines for 
Selected Recommendations  

Electronic Submission Guidelines for Responses to Site Visits & Progress 
Reports 

Guidelines for Reporting Program Changes in Accredited Programs 
           Electronic Submission Guidelines for General Correspondence 
Attachment: Formal Site Visit Report 

 
cc: Ms. Heather Seghi, dean, Health Professions, Illinois Valley Community College, 

   heather_seghi@ivcc.edu 
Ms. Lyndsey Beetz, program director, Dental Hygiene Program, Illinois Valley  
   Community College, Lyndsey_beetz@ivcc.edu 
Mr. Herman Bounds, Jr., director, Accreditation Division, U.S. Department of Education  
   (via CODA website) 
Dr. Edward H. Segal, chair, Illinois Board of Dentistry (via CODA website)  
Dr. Barbara Gellman-Danley, president, Higher Learning Commission (HLC) (via  
   CODA website) 
Dr. Maxine Feinberg, chair, CODA 
Dr. Sherin Tooks, senior director, CODA 

106

https://coda.ada.org/accreditation/accreditation-status-definitions
https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/program-changes-deadlines-and-other-report-guidelines
https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/program-changes-deadlines-and-other-report-guidelines
https://www.ada.org/en/coda/policies-and-guidelines/electronic-submission-guidelines
https://www.ada.org/en/coda/policies-and-guidelines/electronic-submission-guidelines
https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/program-changes-deadlines-and-other-report-guidelines
https://coda.ada.org/policies-and-guidelines/electronic-submission-guidelines


Dr. Tracy Morris 
February 26, 2024 
Page 5 

 

Summary of Recommendations and Required Documentation 
Illinois Valley Community College 

Oglesby, Illinois 
Dental Hygiene 

 
Please review the following paragraphs that include the stated recommendations and required 
documentation to submit with the progress report to demonstrate compliance. 
 

Recommendation #2: It is recommended that this content be of sufficient depth, scope, 
sequence of instruction, quality and emphasis to ensure achievement of the curriculum's 
defined competencies. (DH Standard 2-8)  

The Commission reviewed documentation related to changes in the dental hygiene curriculum 
related to removing courses from the program, the creation of new courses and changes to 
current course content. However, it was unclear if the changes outlined ensuring the 
curriculum content is of sufficient depth, scope, sequence of instruction, quality and emphasis 
to ensure achievement of the curriculum's defined competencies. 

To demonstrate compliance with Recommendation #2 the Commission requests: 1) a 
highlighted curriculum crosswalk using course syllabi for each course that was replaced 
and/or changed demonstrating before and after the curriculum changes and 2) a crosswalk 
illustrating before and after the changes demonstrating the program’s course sequencing and 
demonstrating the increased total program credit hours.   

 

107



Information Item 23.19

108



Information Item 23.20

109



  Approved by the Board (01-18-2024) 

 

 
 
 

College Core Values 
Achieving Excellence through our Core Values (acronym is I-CARE) 

Integrity 
Compassion 
Accountability 
Respect 
Equity 

 
 
 
 

Vision Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College will foster personal and professional 
growth and well-being for our students and community through growing 

programs, updated facilities, and educational innovation. 
 
 
 
 

Mission Statement 
Illinois Valley Community College is dedicated to creating opportunities for 

students and our community by providing access to affordable, 
high-quality higher education and lifelong learning. 

 
 


	Board Packet Cover (with new branding)
	815 North Orlando Smith Road
	A G E N D A
	NOTE: If you are unable to attend this meeting, or if you have questions regarding


	Board Packet Inside Back Cover - Vision, Mission, Goals Revised 01-19-2024
	Audit Finance Committee Minutes - 2-8-24
	None
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. McCracken declared the meeting adjourned at 4:55 p.m.

	Board Minutes - February 8, 2024
	None
	ADJOURNMENT
	Mr. Solon declared the meeting adjourned at 7:28 p.m.
	____________________________    _____________________________ Everett J. Solon, Board Chair     Angela M. Stevenson, Secretary

	treasurers report cover-NEW branding
	Scanned financial pages
	Insurance renewal- action item - March 2024
	Bid Results -Cash Farm Lease - Combining & Hauling
	Tuition Increase Adjustment FY2025
	Course Fee rationale to BOT FY25
	BOT Course Fee Changes for FY 25
	ALL FEES
	FY25 Changes for BOT
	FY24 Changes for BOT
	FY 23 Changes for BOT
	FY 22 Changes for BOT
	FY 21 Changes for BOT
	FY 20 Changes for BOT
	FY19 Changes
	FY18 Changes
	Sheet6
	CEBS
	WFD
	HP
	NSB
	HFAS

	Course Fee Guidelines revFY13
	Qualifying Expenses
	Calculation of Fees

	Request to Bid - Haas CNC MiniMill
	Purchase Request - Furniture for Mktg and Communications
	City of Ottawa Canal TIF
	IGA IVCC  - Canal TIF Extension 2-28-24 for Board Book
	City of Ottawa Dayton TIF
	IGA IVCC - Dayton TIF Extension 2-28-24 for Board Book
	City of Ottawa I80 TIF
	IGA IVCC - North TIF 2nd Extension 2-28-24 for Board Book
	City of Ottawa Route 6 TIF
	IGA IVCC - North TIF 2nd Extension 2-28-24 for Board Book
	Auditor Recommendation
	Action Item Board Policy 1.08
	Board Policy 01.08 Board Meetings and Operations
	Action Item - Hart_Julia Kathy Dean of Institutional Effectiveness 2024.03.18
	(copy) Hart_Kathy Appt Form (2024.03.18 Dean of Institutional Effectiveness)
	Action Item - Credi_Crystal Dean of Student Success 2024.03.18
	(copy) Credi_Crystal Appt Form (2024.03.18 Dean of Student Success)
	Board Policy 01.18 Appearance Before the Board
	Board Policy 01.19 Freedom of Information
	Board Procedure 01.19.00 Freedom of Information
	Board Policy 01.20 Authority of Board Member
	Board Policy 01.23 Emergency Action
	Board Policy 02.12 Fees
	Board Policy 02.13 Grade Exclusion
	Board Policy 02.22 Academic Placement
	01.24.01 Faculty and Adjunct Emeritus 3.4.2024
	01.24.02 Staff and Administrator Emeritus 3.4.2024
	(copy) Witalka_Lisa Appt Form (2024.02.12 Curriculum and Course Scheduler)
	(copy) Trager_Sarah Appt Form (2024.03.25 Dual Credit and Enrollment Coord)
	(copy) Rodriguez_Juan Appt Form (2024.02.02 Technical Support Analyst)
	ICCTA Letter SABIC
	ICCTA Letter Keyt
	lifelong learning letter
	2024_2025 Reappointment of Non-Tenured Faculty
	2024.03.14 Employee Separations Report
	Sheet1

	Illinois Valley Community College TransLetter_DH_02-24
	Thank you - Pam Byrne
	Thank You - Tonica School
	Board Packet Inside Cover January 2024
	Board Agenda - March 14, 2024.pdf
	ILLINOIS VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
	A G E N D A


	2024.03.14 Part-Time Faculty and Support Staff Appointments.pdf
	Sheet1




